
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, APRIL 17, 2023  

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS

4. NEW BUSINESS
a. GWTA Funding Request (Don Willis, GWTA Director)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Pastor Jonathan Smith, Freedom Baptist Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of April 3, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by William Cobb as an Employee of The City 

of Goldsboro for More Than 33 Years   
C. National Volunteer Appreciation Week Proclamation  
D. National Small Business Week Proclamation 
E. Goldsboro/Wayne Certificate of Appreciation (Purple Heart Foundation) 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
F. UDO-1-23 Article 5: Section 5.5.4 – Special Use Specific Use Regulations (E) Bars, Nightclubs, Pool Halls,

Microbreweries, Places of Entertainment (Both Public Private and for Profit) w/ ABC Permit (Planning) 
– Continued from 4/3/23

G. Contiguous Annexation Petition – New Hope Place, LLC - Located on the north side Cuyler Best Rd. 
between Oxford Blvd. and Glendas Dr. (Planning)  

H. Contiguous Annexation Petition – Highland Trails (JD Gupta) - Located on the south side of W New 
Hope Rd. between Somervale Ln. and Twin Oaks Pl. (Planning) 

I. SU-6-23 Place of Entertainment (no ABC Permit) (Planning)  

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
J. Operating Budget Amendment FY22-23 (Finance)
K. Grant Project Budget Amendment for the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund (T2201) (Finance)
L. Grant Project Budget Ordinance for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund (G1109) (Finance)
M. Nonprofit Funding Policy (FINPOL-N001) Amendment (Finance)
N. Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
O. Jamz Out Juneteenth – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
P. Center Street Jam Concert Series – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
Q. Set Public Hearing - Contiguous Annexation Petition – Perry Real Estate Group – Located at the

intersection of New Hope Rd. & Hare Rd. (Planning) 
R. Annexation Ordinance Revision - Election District Decision– Magnolia Grove Subdivision Located on the

east and west side of Eleventh St. between Norwood Ave. and Englewood Dr. (Planning) 
S. SU-3-22 – Gregory Sakas (Retail Sales) 4265 E. US Hwy 70 (Planning)

- Continued to 5/1/23

Removed



2 

T. Use of Public Utilities Capital Reserve to fund the purchase of a replacement Dump Truck for the 
Compost facility (Public Utilities)  

U. Fleet and Fuel Policy (City Manager) 
V. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com
WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

A d d i t i o n a l  F u n d s  A r e  N e e d e d  t o  M a i n t a i n
C u r r e n t  S e r v i c e  L e v e l s  f o r  F Y 2 3 - 2 4

BUDGET REQUEST FOR URBAN BUS 
SERVICES

w.s. item a



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

Why Fund This Request?
o GWTA Bus Service Is Basic and Necessary for People to Access Opportunity

o Key Expenses to Provide Transportation Services are all Increasing 
-Fuel Costs have Increased Tremendously
-Maintenance Providers are Charging More and the Fleet is Aging
-Labor Costs are Up due to Staff Needing to Work Overtime

o It Is Extremely Difficult to Attract and Keep Bus Operators and Staff
in the Current Employment Market

o There is Significant New Federal Grant Funding Available to Assist GWTA
but Can Only be Drawn if there are Also More Local Funds Invested

o Demand for Expensive ADA and Dial-A-Ride Services Are Increasing

o Last Year Wayne County Accepted Rate Increases to Pay for Rural Service

o Available Recovery Funds Will be Used to Replace the Aging Fleet

GWTA’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY 
APPROVED THIS REQUEST



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

THIS IS THE FIRST INCREASE REQUESTED BY THE 
GWTA IN SEVERAL YEARS

WHAT IS REQUESTED AND WHAT WOULD BE DONE WITH THE FUNDS?

AN ADDITIONAL $50,000 IS NEEDED IN LOCAL FUNDS TO LEVERAGE $115,000 MORE 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS. THIS IS ABOUT A 12% INCREASE TO THE TOTAL BUDGET

RAISES AND INCENTIVES WILL BE USED TO ATTRACT AND KEEP EMPLOYEES
-GWTA IS NOT CURRENTLY COMPETITIVE IN THE JOB MARKET
-THIS IS NEEDED TO IMPROVE SERVICE RELIABILITY AND PERFORMANCE

OPERATION OF BUS SERVICES COULD CONTINUE AT THE EXISTING BASIC LEVEL
-FIVE FIXED ROUTE BUSES ON ONE HOUR HEADWAYS
-ADA AND COMPLEMENTARY DIAL-A-RIDE PARATRANSIT SERVICES
-MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY FROM 5:30AM – 6:30PM
-SATURDAY FROM 9:30AM – 6:30PM



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

GWTA BUS SERVICES ARE ALREADY BASIC WITH AN 
EXTENDED COVERAGE AREA

WHAT IF THESE FUNDS AREN’T APPROVED?



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

GWTA APPRECIATES OUR PARTNERSHIP WITH GOLDSBORO 
IN SERVING THE COMMUNITY!

QUESTIONS?



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

AGING FLEET:  GILLIG WITH OVER 300K MILES



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

AGING FLEET:   GILLIG



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

AGING FLEET:  ARBOC WITH 262K MILES



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

GWTA HAS BUDGETED RECOVERY FUNDS TO COVER 
CAPITAL REPLACEMENT



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

GWTA HAS BUDGETED RECOVERY FUNDS TO COVER 
CAPITAL REPLACEMENT



WWW.RIDEGWTA.COM | 919.736.1374 | gwta@waynegov.com

GWTA HAS BUDGETED RECOVERY FUNDS TO COVER 
CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

• Two Buses Ordered on August 31, 2022
• Order Total is $989,246.00 Using CARES at 100%
• Typical Local Match Would Be 20%:   $197,849
• Useful Life Will Be Over 10 Years
• Six Smaller Vehicles Remain To Be Replaced
• There Will Be $850,754 Left In CARES
• GWTA Plans To Replace The Remaining Fleet With 

Minimal Funds Requested From Goldsboro



1 of 12 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
APRIL 3, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on April 3, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 

Absent: Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 

 Adoption of the Agenda. Mayor Ham requested the removal of Item K, Authorization of sale of jointly owned 
property for 200 N. Carolina Street (Norris Uzzell) from the Consent Agenda. Mayor Ham also asked for the addition of the 
following items: NPO Third Party Administrator discussion to the work session under Old Business, and an item from the 
Planning Department, Certification of Sufficiency - Contiguous Annexation Petition - Perry Real Estate Group as Item U on 
the Consent Agenda. Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilman Broadaway, and unanimously 
carried, Council adopted the agenda as amended.  

Old Business. 
NPO Third Party Administrator Discussion. Mayor Ham shared that Council voted to use a nonprofit to 

administer the NPO allocations for the FY 23-24 budget. WAGES and United Way submitted a proposal to administer the 
funding.   

During the adoption of the agenda, Councilman Broadaway asked to be excused from this discussion and decision 
due to the fact he is on the WAGES board. Councilman Gaylor made a motion to allow Mr. Broadaway to be excused from 
any discussion here forward on this item. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro 
Tem Polack and Councilman Gaylor voted for the motion and it passed unanimously.  

Councilman Broadaway stepped out of the room at 5:10 p.m.  

Mayor Ham stated the two applicants presented their proposal at the March 20 meeting. Council discussed the two 
applicants. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to allow United Way to handle our third party NPO allocations. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  

Councilman Broadaway returned at 5:14 p.m. 

New Business.  
EPA Brownfields Planning Grant. Hayley Irick with Terracon presented the following presentation: 

Goldsboro City Council
Meeting: Let’s Talk
Brownfields Grants

Hayley Irick, PG
April 3, 2023

Item A



2 of 12 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
Council discussed the proposed grant and potential sites. The issue will come back to Council before the grant is submitted.  
 

NCLM Voting Delegate.  Council consensus was to designate City Manager Tim Salmon as the voting delegate for 
the NCLM Board of Directors election.  

 
Consent Agenda Review. Items J, L - U on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 

following items:  
 
Item J. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 111 N. Slocumb to 

Christopher Michael Jones. Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously 
carried, Council accepted the bid. 

 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to amend the agenda of the day to remove Item P from the consent agenda and 

place it under Items Requiring Individual Action. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously 
carried.  
 

Closed Session. 
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council 

went into Closed Session for the purpose of litigation. 
 
After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 



3 of 12 
 

 
The meeting recessed at 6:03 p.m. 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on April 3, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Pastor Cynthia Whaley with Destiny Walker Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 

  
 Absent:  Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
    Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  

Councilman Greg Batts 
  

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager   

 
Approval of Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 

Regular Meeting of March 20, 2023. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   
 
Presentations. 
Month of the Military Child (Purple Up Day) Proclamation. Read by Councilman Broadaway: The Goldsboro 

City Council proclaimed April 2023 as the MONTH OF THE MILITARY CHILD and April 21st as Purple Up Day for 
Wayne County Public Schools. They encouraged all school personnel and City of Goldsboro residents to recognize the 
contributions of our military families and to celebrate the spirit of military children across our city and nation by wearing 
purple on April 21st as an outward symbol of appreciation for our youngest heroes. 
 
Cristy Barnes-Williams, School Liaison at Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and Heather Winstead, District Military 
Liaison for Wayne County Public Schools received the proclamation and invited everyone to Purple Up on April 21st to 
support Military students and invited everyone to join in the Purple (Walking) Parade at 9:15 a.m. 
 

Children and Families Month Proclamation. Read by Mayor Pro Tem Polack: The Goldsboro City Council, in 
recognition of efforts to support Child Abuse Prevention Month, Week of the Young Child, and Month of the Military 
Child, proclaimed April 2023 as CHILDREN AND FAMILIES MONTH in the City of Goldsboro and urged all citizens to 
recognize this month by dedicating themselves to the task of improving the quality of life for all children and their families. 
 
Melissa Harrell, Mental Health Services Manager with WAGES received the proclamation and invited everyone to the 
Child Abuse Prevention Month event downtown tomorrow, April 4. 
 

Goldsboro/Wayne Certificate of Appreciation.  No one from the Purple Heart Foundation attended.  
 
Re-Entry Month Proclamation.  Read by Councilman Gaylor: The Goldsboro City Council proclaimed the month 

of April as SECOND CHANCE MONTH in Goldsboro, North Carolina and encouraged residents to observe this month and 
recognized the efforts of those who work to improve rehabilitation and reintegration of formerly incarcerated individuals. 
 
Michelle Bass with the Wayne County Re-Entry Council accepted the proclamation and invited the Mayor and Council to 
attend the event on April 19 from 10-1 at the Day Reporting Center parking lot where they will have food and community 
resources.  
 

Public Hearings.  
UDO-1-23 Article 5: Section 5.5.4 – Special Use Specific Use Regulations (E) Bars, Nightclubs, Pool Halls, 

Microbreweries, Places of Entertainment (Both Public Private and for Profit) w/ ABC Permit – Continued from 
3/20/23. Public Hearing Held and continued to April 17, 2023.  
 
APPLICANT: Kyle Merritt 

 



4 of 12 
 

The applicant is proposing for the text located in Section 5.5.4 (E) of the City of Goldsboro UDO to be amended. The 
proposed amendment would remove language regarding how distance is measured to determine that there is at least 50 feet 
between Bars, Nightclubs, Pool Halls, Microbreweries, and Places of Entertainment (Both Public Private and for Profit) w/ 
ABC Permit. The way that distance is currently measured reads as follows.  
 
The separation distance required by this section shall be measured in a straight line from property line to property line, with 
no consideration as to intervening structures, roads, or landforms.  
 
The applicant is requesting for the portion of this text that reads “with no consideration as to intervening structures, roads or 
landforms.” to be removed from the City of Goldsboro UDO.  
 
By removing this, it creates a situation where you could include things such as a public right of way in the required distance 
separation to achieve the minimum 50 feet needed. These types of uses that are required to meet this 50 feet separation are 
still identified as Special Uses and would require quasi-judicial review and approval from City Council before any operation 
would be allowed to take place.  
 
The applicant is requesting this Text Amendment to relocate “Church Spirits & Cocktails” to 116 W. Mulberry Street, 
which adjacent to St. Stephens Episcopal Church. The only thing separating the property lines is the Mulberry St. right-of-
way. This text amendment, if approved, would create an opportunity for Kyle Merritt to apply for a Special Use Permit to 
establish “Church Spirits & Cocktails” at 116 W. Mulberry St.  
 
Land Use Plan Recommendation: The City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Plan classifies the Central Business District to be 
in the Mixed-Use Downtown designation. An identified goal of the comprehensive land use plan is to continue to focus on 
improvement of the downtown Goldsboro area.  
 
See below for the language for the proposed amendment.  
 
ARTICLE 5: SECTION 5.5.4 SPECIAL USE SPECIFIC REGULATIONS (E) 
 
The separation distance required by this section shall be measured in a straight line from property line to property line, with 
no consideration as to intervening structures, roads, or landforms.  

 
Staff is neither recommending approval nor recommending denial. Staff is acknowledging the fact that if the text is 
amended that these types of uses (Bars, Nightclubs, Pool Halls, Microbreweries, and Places of Entertainment (Both Public 
Private and for Profit) w/ ABC Permit) would still be required to undergo the Special Use Permit process which would 
require City Council to perform quasi-judicial review on each separate request and apply conditions as they see necessary to 
mitigate the use.  
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on February 27, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding 
the text amendment. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the Inconsistency Statement (attached) and recommend 
denial to City Council for the proposed text amendment. The vote was 3-2. 
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing. The following people spoke: 
 

1. Kyle Merritt- owner of Church Spirits and Cocktails shared comments of support from a local business and other 
neighboring businesses. He also shared comments in support of the UDO text amendment.  

2. Cameron Yarborough- shared support of the proposed UDO text amendment.  
   
No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to continue this until our April 17 meeting, at which time we take a vote. The motion 
was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.  
 

Non-Contiguous (Satellite) Annexation Petition – Goldsboro (Hwy 70) WW, LLC - Located on the southwest 
corner of US Hwy. 70 W. and NC 581. Public Hearing Held and Ordinance Adopted.  Hwy Tax Parcel #:  2671815879 
Acreage:  2.64 acres 
 
The City Council, at their meeting on March 20, 2023, scheduled a public hearing for the proposed annexation of the subject 
property.  A public hearing notice was properly advertised stating the time, place and purpose of the meeting. 
 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-58, at the public hearing all persons owning property in the area proposed to be annexed, as well as 
the residents of the municipality, shall be given an opportunity to be heard on the  proposed annexation. 
 
If the Council determines that the proposed annexation meets all the requirements of G. S. 160A-58, it has the authority to 
adopt an annexation ordinance. 
 



5 of 12 
 

A report was prepared by the Planning Department in conjunction with other departments, concerning the subject 
annexation area.  All City services can be provided to the property except for City water and sewer.  These utilities will be 
provided by Fork Township. 
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to adopt the following entitled Ordinance annexing Tax Parcel # 2671815879 
effective April 3, 2023. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-12 “AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN NON-CONTIGUOUS REAL PROPERTY 
TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 
Z-2-23 John E. Darden (Neighborhood Business to General Business) – North side of E Elm St. between Dail St. and 
Linwood Ave. (site of Elm St. Detail Shop). Public Hearing Held and Approval Ordinance Adopted. ADDRESS: 1011 E 
Elm St. 
 
PARCEL #: 3509322453 
PROPERTY OWNER: Karol DeVaughn 
APPLICANT: John E. Darden 
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Neighborhood Business Zoning District (NB) to the General Business (GB) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the General Business (GB) Zoning District is to accommodate the widest range of uses 
providing general goods and services to the community. The district is intended to promote high quality, accessible 
developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding area. 
 
Access: E Elm St.   
Area: 0.37 acres  
                                  
SURROUNDING ZONING:              

North: Residential 6 
South: Office & Institutional I 
East: Residential 6 
West: Neighborhood Business 

 
Existing Use:  The property currently consists of a vacant commercial structure, utilized as a body/detail shop. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the High-Density Residential land use designation. 
 
High-Density Residential: This designation was given based off existing residential development patterns and constraints to 
development, as well as the location of infrastructure.  
 
The General Business (GB) Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the High-Density Residential 
land use designation.  
 
This is a rezoning proposal for a 0.37-acre parcel to be rezoned from the Neighborhood Business Zoning District (NB) to 
the General Business (GB) Zoning District. The subject property is utilized as the “Elm St. Detail Shop” and operates as a 
shop to serve the automotive industry. The adjacent uses are the “D&C Mini Mart” located across Dail St., vacant 
undeveloped property directly across Elm St., a vacant undeveloped property located behind the subject parcel, and a single-
family dwelling located to the east across Linwood Ave. This parcel has direct frontage on Elm St. as well as frontage on 
Dail St. and Linwood Ave.  
 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations due to this being a straight rezoning request. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on the fact that this parcel has a history of being utilized for 
commercial purposes. The use of the adjacent property being commercial, as well as the unique characteristic of the 
property being bordered on 3 sides by rights-of-way serves as a detriment to potential residential development, which is 
what the land use plan desires. The rezoning of this property to a General Business Zoning District would allow for 
expanded list of uses that could serve the surrounding community. The rezoning of this property would provide an 
opportunity for infill development to take place as well. 
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on March 27, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
rezoning request. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the consistency statement (attached) and recommend approval 
to City Council for the proposed rezoning. The vote was 5-0.  
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following person spoke.  
 

1. Carl Darden spoke in favor of the rezoning request and shared she had a petition with names of support.  



6 of 12 
 

No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-13 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Z-3-23 Nelson Chavarria (Residential 16 to Residential 9) – South side of McLain St. off of Central Height 
Rd. Public Hearing Held and Approval Ordinance Adopted. ADDRESS: McLain St. 
 
PARCEL #: 3519738942 
PROPERTY OWNER: Nelson Chavarria 
APPLICANT: Charles R. Covar 
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential 16 Zoning District (R-16) to the Residential 9 (R-9) Zoning 
District. The purpose of the Residential 9 (R-9) Zoning District is to accommodate both single-family and multi-family 
residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature. 
 
Access: McLain St.  
Area: 0.61 acres  
                                  
SURROUNDING ZONING:                    

North: Office & Institutional I 
South: Residential 16 
East: Residential 16 
West: Residential 9 

 
Existing Use: Vacant, uncleared lot. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Commercial land use designation. 
 
Commercial: This designation puts a future emphasis on in-fill development, the desired development density is 10,000 
square feet of building per acre.  
 
The Residential 9 (R-9) Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Commercial land use 
designation.  
 
This is a rezoning proposal for a 0.61-acre parcel to be rezoned from the Residential 16 Zoning District (R-16) to the 
Residential 9 (R-9) Zoning District. The subject property currently exists as a wooded lot. The adjacent uses are the 
Goldsboro Pentecostal Free Will Baptist Church, multi-family townhouses and single-family dwellings. The key difference 
between the R-16 district and the R-9 district is that the R-9 would allow the property to be utilized for multi-family 
purposes at a development density of 9,000 square feet for the first unit and 4,500 square feet for each subsequent unit. The 
maximum density that could potentially take place on the subject property would be 5 units. The property is not required to 
develop as multi-family due to this being a straight rezoning. 
 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations due to this being a straight rezoning request. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request   based on the presence of an adjacent Residential 9 Zoning District. 
Despite this parcel being identified as falling within the Commercial land use designation, the surrounding parcels have not 
developed in this manner and this parcel is not an ideal site for that type of development or zoning to occur here. The 
rezoning of this property to a Residential 9 Zoning District would allow for multi-family development to occur but not at a 
density that may be detrimental to the adjacent properties.  
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on March 27, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
rezoning request. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the consistency statement (attached) and recommend approval 
to City Council for the proposed rezoning. The vote was 5-0.  
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement.  
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-14 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 



7 of 12 
 

Z-4-23 SOS Management Inc. (Residential 20A to Residential 12) – East of Piedmont Airline Rd. off Thel Dr. 
Public Hearing Held and Ordinance Adopted. ADDRESS: Piedmont Airline Rd. 
 
PARCEL #: 3518758167 
PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT: David Simmons  
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential 20 A Zoning District (R-20A) to the Residential 12 (R-12) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning District is to accommodate both single-family and multi-
family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature. 
 
Access: Piedmont Airline Rd.  
Area: 12.92 acres  
                                  
SURROUNDING ZONING:                     

North: R-20 & R-12 within 200 feet 
             South: R-20A 

East: R-20 & RM-9 
West: R-20A & RM-9 

 
Existing Use: Woodland 
 
Land Use Plan:  The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Low-Density Residential land use designation. 
 
Low-Density Residential: This designation was given based off existing residential development patterns and constraints to 
development, as well as the location of infrastructure.  
 
The Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Low-Density Residential land 
use designation.  
 
This is a rezoning proposal for a 12.92-acre parcel to be rezoned from the Residential 20A Zoning District (R-20A) to the 
Residential 12 (R-12) Zoning District. The subject property currently exists as a wooded lot. The adjacent uses are non-
conforming & conforming manufactured homes and single-family dwellings. The difference between the R-20A district and 
the R-12 district is that the R-12 would allow the property to be utilized for multi-family purposes at a development density 
of 12,000 square feet for the first unit and 6,000 square feet for each subsequent unit. This has the potential to result in a 
significant increase in density. The maximum density that could potentially take place on the subject property would be 
between approximately 70-75 units (including open space in this calculation). If this property were to be subdivided for a 
subdivision there is the potential for 40-45 lots, depending on the arrangements of rights-of way, this number could be less.  
 
The property is not required to develop as multi-family or as a single-family subdivision due to this being a straight 
rezoning. This property is located within the ETJ and would be required to annex into the City of Goldsboro to receive 
water and sewer service. 
 
TRC REVIEW: Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base and NCDOT. There were no comments or recommendations due to this being a straight rezoning request. 
Staff acknowledges this is within the DNL 70-74 noise contour and that the development of this property would be required 
to incorporate noise level reduction measures as identified in the City of Goldsboro UDO. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning request based on several factors. There is a Residential 12 Zoning District 
in very close proximity to the subject property which has been utilized for multi-family development. There is also sewer 
along Piedmont Airline Rd. which could be extended to support a higher density type of development on the subject 
property. The City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan also expresses that the development of vacant parcels 
accessible to water and sewer should be encouraged. Despite this parcel being identified as falling within the Low-Density 
Residential land use designation, the surrounding area has not developed as such, with the most recent development in this 
area being the multi-family development to the north occurring over 20 years ago.  The rezoning of this property to a 
Residential 12 Zoning District would allow the opportunity for new types of high-density development to occur. High 
density development could also cater to a situation where housing may be more affordable, due to smaller lot 
sizes/structures.  
 
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on March 27, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
rezoning request. The Planning Commission voted to adopt the consistency statement (attached) and recommend approval 
to City Council for the proposed rezoning. The vote was 5-0.  
 
Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following people spoke: 
 

1. David Simmons spoke in support of the rezoning request.  
2. Marvin Worrell III, spoke in support of the rezoning request.  

 
No one else spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  



8 of 12 
 

Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement.  
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-15 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AND COMPREHENSIVE 
LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. No one spoke and the public comment 
period was closed.  

Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 
were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Item K, Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 200 N. Carolina Street was removed from the Consent Agenda 
during the Adoption of the Agenda. Item U, Certification Of Sufficiency -Contiguous Annexation Petition – Perry Real 
Estate Group – Located at the intersection of New Hope Rd. & Hare Rd. was added to the agenda during the Adoption of 
the Agenda and Item P, SU-3-23 Place of Entertainment w/ ABC Permit (Bricks Restaurant) – 223 N Center St. was 
removed from the Consent Agenda and added to Items Requiring Individual Action. Mayor Pro Tem Polack moved the 
items on the Consent Agenda, Items J, L, M, N, O, Q, R, S, T and U be approved as recommended by the City Manager and 
staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the 
motion.    

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 111 N. Slocumb to 
Christopher Michael Jones. Offer Accepted and Resolution Adopted.  Staff has received an offer to purchase city owned 
property.  Council must either accept or reject the offer, and if accepted authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-
266 and 160A-269). 

 
The following offer has been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset 
bid process (G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 

  
111 N. Slocumb Street 
 
Offeror:  Christopher Michael Jones 

 Offer:  $3,500.00 
 Bid Deposit: $175.00 
 Parcel #:  51031   Pin #: 3509152348 
 Tax Value: $6,880.00  Zoning: R-9 
 

The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of cash. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the offer on 111 N. Slocumb Street and adopt the following entitled resolution 
authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-22 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS” 
 

Ratifying the Economic Development Agreements between the City of Goldsboro, WNB Landlord, LLC., 
and County of Wayne. Resolution Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro entered into an economic development agreement for 
a performance based loan on February 15, 2019 and an economic development agreement for a property tax grant on 
February 18, 2019 with WNB Landlord, LLC, a subsidiary of Rehab Development, Inc. 
 
Rehab Development, Inc. completed a $13.9M historic rehabilitation project in April 2022. The project included six historic 
buildings, 10,900 sq. ft. of commercial, ready-to-lease space and 63 market rate residential units, successfully repurposing 
67,000 sq. ft of formerly vacant, non-productive space.  
 
 The performance-based loan of $300,000 was distributed in three installments and forgiven after thresholds of performance 
were met and substantiated. 
 
The property tax grant reduces the City property tax cost by 90% in years 1-5, 75% year 6, 60% year 7, 45% year 8, 30% 
year 9 and 15% year 10, for a total current estimated tax value grant of $469,463.  
 
The original agreements were amended on June 15, 2020 and approved by Council. The amendment included updated 
official measurements and an increase in anticipated units from 55 to a minimum of 60. Staff is requesting that Council 
approve the resolution to ratify the agreements executed on February 15, 2019 and February 18, 2019, as well as the 
amended agreements executed on June 16, 2020. 
 
Pursuant to General Statute 158-7.1, a public hearing was held on November 20, 2017. A resolution is not required, but 
preferred.    



9 of 12 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution ratifying the economic development agreement 
performance-based loan executed on February 15, 2019 and the economic development agreement property tax grant 
executed on February 18, 2019, as well as the amended agreements executed on June 16, 2020 between the City of 
Goldsboro, WNB Landlord, LLC., and the County of Wayne. The original executed agreements are attached as part of the 
agenda packet. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-23 “RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, WNB LANDLORD, LLC., AND COUNTY OF WAYNE ON FEBRUARY 15, 2019, 
FEBRUARY 18, 2019, AND JUNE 16, 2020” 
 

Set Public Hearing - Contiguous Annexation Petition – Highland Trails (JD Gupta) - Located on the south 
side of W New Hope Rd. between Somervale Ln. and Twin Oaks Pl. Public Hearing Set.  Tax Parcel #: 3600971450, 
3600974104, 3600969806 
 
Acreage: 19.35 acres 
 
The City Council, at their meeting on January 23, 2023, requested that the City Clerk examine the voluntary 
contiguous annexation petition for sufficiency.   
 
On March 14, 2023, the City Clerk completed the examination and determined that the petition is sufficient.  Sufficiency 
indicates that all property owners have signed the petition for voluntary annexation and that all information listed upon the 
application is accurate.  
 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-31, Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the annexation once the petition is considered 
sufficient by the City Clerk. 
 
The attached Notice of Public Hearing would schedule April 17, 2023, as the date for the public hearing.  A report prepared 
by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, will be submitted to the Council on that date.  
 
It was recommended that Council schedule a public hearing for the proposed voluntary contiguous annexation of Highland 
Trails (JD Gupta), Tax Parcels 3600971450, 3600974104 and 3600969806 for April 17, 2023. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 

Set Public Hearing - Contiguous Annexation Petition – New Hope Place, LLC - Located on the north side 
Cuyler Best Rd. between Oxford Blvd. and Glendas Dr. Public Hearing Set. Tax Parcel #: 3610508709 

 
Acreage: 14.04 acres 

 
The City Council, at their meeting on March 20, 2023, requested that the City Clerk examine the voluntary 
contiguous annexation petition for sufficiency.   
On March 24, 2023, the City Clerk completed the examination and determined that the petition is sufficient.  Sufficiency 
indicates that all property owners have signed the petition for voluntary annexation and that all information listed upon the 
application is accurate.  

 
Pursuant to G. S. 160A-31, Council shall fix a date for public hearing on the annexation once the petition is considered 
sufficient by the City Clerk. 

 
The attached Notice of Public Hearing would schedule April 17, 2023, as the date for the public hearing.  A report prepared 
by the Planning Department, in conjunction with other City departments, will be submitted to the Council on that date.  

 
It was recommended that Council schedule a public hearing for the proposed voluntary contiguous annexation of New Hope 
Place, LLC, Tax Parcel 3610508709 for April 17, 2023. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 

Split-Jurisdiction Agreement between the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne. Resolution Adopted.  
Tax Parcel Id:  3610-97-5195 
 
Owner:  Roy Barnes Heirs 
 
Acres:  11.3; 6 acres (County of Wayne)/5 acres (City of Goldsboro) 
 
On September 6, 2022, City Council approved a Resolution Authorizing by Mutual Agreement Between the City of 
Goldsboro and the County of Wayne To Assign Exclusive Planning and Development Regulation Jurisdiction From One 
(the City of Goldsboro) to the Other (County of Wayne) pertaining to the subject property referenced above. 
  
Recently, City officials were informed that the Wayne County Tax Office identified errors in their database reflecting 
incorrect tax parcel identification numbers and property owners associated with the property.  As such, Goldsboro City 
Council and the County of Wayne are required to revise the split jurisdiction agreement. 



10 of 12 
 

Zoning and other development regulations are state powers delegated to local governments.  North Carolina state legislature 
sets the rules for which local governments can exercise these powers and where that can be done within their respective 
jurisdictions. 
 
The City of Goldsboro exercises the enforcement of planning and development regulations throughout the corporate City 
limits and one-mile extra-territorial jurisdiction.  The County of Wayne exercises planning and development regulations 
outside of the City’s corporate limits and one-mile extra-territorial jurisdiction. 
City and County jurisdictional boundaries do not have to follow property lines.  In Wayne County, it is not uncommon for 
part of a parcel of land to be in the City of Goldsboro’s planning jurisdiction and the remainder of the property to be in 
Wayne County.   
 
Historically, the City and County released planning and development regulation jurisdiction from one unit of local 
government to another based on which unit of local government had the majority acreage within their respective 
jurisdiction.  Informal administrative development approvals were authorized by the City Planning Director and the County 
Planning Director. 
 
According to GS 160D-203, property shall be subject to City or County development regulations.  New land-use law 
dictates that if the landowner and both units of government agree, exclusive planning and development regulation 
jurisdiction for the entire parcel may be assigned to one jurisdiction.  An agreement on development regulation must be 
approved by resolution formally adopted by both the City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne.  
 
Owners of the subject property desire that the entire parcel have continuity in planning and development regulations by 
assigning exclusive jurisdiction to the County of Wayne.   
  
Staff is recommending that City Council agree to the release of City planning and development jurisdiction to the County of  
Wayne for the portion of said property within the City’s jurisdiction. 
 
It was recommended that Council approve the recommendation of Planning staff and adopt the following entitled 
Resolution Authorizing by Mutual Agreement Between the City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne To Assign 
Exclusive Planning and Development Regulation Jurisdiction From One (the City of Goldsboro) to the Other (County of 
Wayne). Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-24 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BY MUTUAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO AND THE COUNTY OF WAYNE TO ASSIGN EXCLUSIVE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATION JURISDICTION FROM ONE TO THE OTHER” 
 

SU-4-23 Licensed Massage Therapy (Aim 2 Ease) – 3888 E Ash St. Approved. This Special Use Permit was 
voted on and approved at the March 20, 2023, meeting and is not eligible for further deliberation or discussion. 
    
It was recommended that Council review the Order to Approve, and Mayor Ham sign the order. Consent Agenda Approval. 
Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 

 
Roosevelt Group Engagement Letter. Resolution Adopted. The Roosevelt Group provides advocacy and 

consulting services to the City of Goldsboro and Wayne County governments. They have significant experience 
representing military communities and in-depth understanding of the federal budget process, Base Realignment and Closure 
(BRAC) activities, and national security policy. The Roosevelt Group was approved in the City of Goldsboro’s FY22-23 
budget for services in the amount of $30,000.   
  
This engagement letter represents a continuation of an engagement that began on November 1, 2015 and is based on a flat 
retainer of $60,000.00 for the contract year. The City of Goldsboro and Wayne County governments will pay $30,000 each. 
The total amount due from the City and the County will be paid upon receipt of invoice from the Roosevelt Group. The term 
of the contract is for a one-year period unless determined by either party with a 30-day notice for contract change or 
termination of services. Fees will be pro-rated accordingly.    
 
Should the City of Goldsboro and/or Wayne County seek additional support utilizing the full resources of the Roosevelt 
Group, the agreement can be modified to reflect those changes.   
  
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
engagement letter with the Roosevelt Group. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-25 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE ROOSEVELT GROUP” 
 

A Resolution in Support of Rail Service from Goldsboro, NC to Wilmington and Raleigh, NC. Resolution 
Adopted. Every year, railroads save consumers billions of dollars while reducing energy consumption and pollution, 
lowering greenhouse gas emissions, cutting highway gridlock, and reducing the high costs to taxpayers of highway 
construction and maintenance. North Carolina's first system dates back to 1833 when the Wilmington & Weldon Railroad 



11 of 12 
 

was charted to connect its namesake cities, which it completed on March 7th, 1840. By doing so the railroad became the 
longest railroad operated in the world at that time, spanning some 161 miles. 
 
The North Carolina Railroad (NCRR) manages a 317-mile rail corridor spanning the state of North Carolina from Morehead 
City to Charlotte, over which about 60 Norfolk Southern freight trains and 10 Amtrak passenger trains travel each day. 
Since its creation, NCRR has been a driver for economic growth in the state. Annually, North Carolina's passenger rail 
services contribute to 430 jobs, $20.1 million in earned wages, $30.6 million in gross state product, and $47.4 million in 
benefits rail passengers receive from taking the train instead of other modes of travel.  
 
Nearly 900,000 passengers boarded trains in North Carolina in 2016, served by six intercity passenger routes with stops in 
16 cities and towns. Nine of those stops are along the busy, 174-mile Piedmont Corridor between Charlotte and Raleigh. 
Eastern North Carolina would benefit in the same way with job creation, a reduction of highway construction and 
maintenance, as well as reducing highway gridlock, energy consumption and pollution, and lowering greenhouse gas 
emissions. Goldsboro and Wayne County are home to Goldsboro Union Station, a once thriving rail depot from 1907 to 
1968, which could one day support passenger and freight service again. 
 
This resolution is to request that the State of North Carolina begin the process to bring rail service back to Goldsboro and 
Wayne County; connecting to Wilmington and Raleigh, North Carolina. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution in Support of Rail Service from Goldsboro, NC to 
Wilmington, NC. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-26 “A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF RAIL SERVICE FROM GOLDSBORO, NC TO 
WILMINGTON AND RALEIGH, NC” 
 

Advisory Board and Commission Appointments. Resolutions Adopted. There are currently several vacancies on 
Advisory Boards and Commissions.  Citizen involvement is vital to the performance of City government.  It is necessary 
that additional appointments be made to fill these vacancies.   
 
Recommendations for appointments were requested from the respective Boards and Commissions.  Applications were also 
solicited from the public at large.  
 
The City Council met during the Work Session on March 20, 2023, to review vacancies and applications received to fill the 
current vacancies. With these appointments, one student position on the Recreation Advisory Commission and one alternate 
position on the Historic District Commission remains.  
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolutions appointing members to various Advisory Boards 
and Commissions in the City of Goldsboro, and commending individuals who have served on Advisory Boards and 
Commissions of the City of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Gaylor (4 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-27 “RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-28 “RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED ON ADVISORY 
BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 

Items Requiring Individual Action  
Change Order No.1 Price Change for the Bulk Storage Tank replacement for the WRF. Resolution Adopted.  

In the FY23 Budget the Bulk Storage Tank Replacement was approved for $45,000. The City received bids on July 15, 
2022, the lowest bid came at $118,450. During the November 21,2022 council meeting, Council approved the use of the 
Utilities Capital Reserve Fund for amount of $73,450 in addition to the $45,000 that was originally budgeted for a total of 
$118,450.00. Council adopted Resolution 2022-116 at the December 5, 2022 meeting to authorize the City Manager to 
execute the contract with Dellinger Inc. in the amount of $118,450 to replace the caustic soda bulk storage tank.  

    
The original contract amount had a price increase on the materials of $8,202.  Also, the contract did not include sales taxes 
for materials used in the project, therefore an additional $8,549.01 is needed to cover sales tax. Staff recommends issuing a 
change order to increase the contract amount to include the sales taxes and the increase cost of the bulk storage tank. 
Finance will request a tax refund in 2023 to recoup the sales taxes. The total change order requested is $16,751.01, which 
would put the total contract price at $135,201.01. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the contract 
with Dellinger Inc. for the Bulk Storage Tank Replacement at the WRF.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the 
contract with Dellinger Inc. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-29 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO 
DELLINGER, INC. FOR THE BULK STORAGE TANK REPLACEMENT PROJECT” 
 



O

12

N

0

co

0

C41

4. 

o

m

0

o

cit >, =

a0:

d

v, 

14

o

o

0

b

U

U =  ` 

i -

d

c 

to

c

O ' 

1 ° 

to

A4

A

C4a 
o

o

o

v„ 

a 

3

o

y >, 

WC44
C9

I

W

r., 

o .

d

0

y

U

a> 

o

a 

a 

3 .• 

v, 

v, —

a) 

aq 

l

d 

O

a 

3

V 

4. 

N " 

V] 

xC;
l

O ~'" 

w

A

sU. 

U  "" 

is

is  ^

fl

cl   

w

Y

rA

o,

d

O

o

o

en

0 ° 

p °

ai -

dN
o

3 ° 

m° 

p' `

Ao

0 -

LA

rn

U

ami

o `

d . 

o . 

a0i ° 

j

rlto
44

0

M

0

0

CZ

O

c 

O

N

N' 

p

Q. 

Vw~ 
y

N

U

QCl
N

U

O -+

w, 

o

b

O

0

bq

y

U' >' 

1

O

b

U

a 

p

o -

o

to

H

rA

a

3

0

a 

3

3

to

c 

O

a

0 '

o

m

o  

3 ° .°° 

W

O ' 

v

ct

co •

y

o -` ~

JD

a1

o

a

a '' 

o. 

i ° 

b

0

4° 

0

3 " 

tt
o  

2

a

0

c

o " 

o

i

o >' -

0

0

to °' 

o ; > 

0

3

0° 

o

o

a >, 

w

o  

n

3

O .

5

u

o " }? -

0 •° 

U . . 

o

to .

fl

pUp

O

3

4. 

c . 

tip

O

cd

0. 

0

to

ocu
p

b ° 

y 

y

O

x

O

vpi

3

fir. 

rA

Oti> 
CA

Gp

N

O

o >' 

N

U

O

O

U

v +" 

0 ' 

N

3  

m + 

03.

g

w

c ^

p

y

p

rn

3

to --. 

y ' 

CC 

0

O 

v .+ 

N

N • 

A

y

moi

U ` 

N

i•. •.. 

Z ' 

N

Uj . .•+ 

CC

y.

y ., • ,, 

C". 

L. •.. 

y

m + 

2

H ° 

a °" ° 

w °' 

3 ¢ . 

a 

a

4° 

a0i ° 

A

0 °' - " 

I

o

a. 

o  

b

o

o >' 

o

O

10

a" 

3 °' ' 

Q' 

3

0 -

fl

D

o

c

0

4.. 

o

3

0

0

a 

o

a . 

to ¢ 

o

O+ 

a' > 

p

y

Y

ao

o° 

Atn
tom- 

o

7

O

c

a

s. ^

C

O.+ *

C8v, 
ti

p

O

b
0 .

0

R

O

O

C1. 

O

w

c 

0

0

o

y

0

3

4.

P. o. 

O

o

00

3

0

Cp
U 

3
0-

4  

co

o

N

0

U

bA , 

O

Cd

0
En

O

h>,= 

U

o

0 ° 

4N. ¢

CN

0

0«% 

oC"
13

0.OO. 

0

o

0°.«

3

oc 

o0
0C,

3O
b

O

O

0N

K

N .

OU

P. 

t

OU

O

0

C>

z

O

U

O

O ' 

QU .
c'

s

00
N

c ^= 

U

1

O

E= 

u

aU
1

cd

N

a

0 °° — 

O

0 

8

to

ciod

CZ

p 

p

U

O

O

d

U

b

o

o

N

0

o

to

s

i

U

b

b ,> 

o

H

b

a" 

O

p

c

cd

o

a 

b

c .

r: 

bA

ap

b ., .

0

O

c'

s

m , , 

t  

c" 

N °' `" 

0

as

o

U

w °. , 

a

W

x° 

O> 

b

0  

Y

4.

44

o>, 

b

0

U

o

0  '" 

0

a >, 

o

U

0

3

o .: ~ 

o

U

0

ani

U

o

o° 

a 

0

3

U ` 

3

o -

d . 

cd

o

U

m

cC

cC

U

3

c 

b

O

t+ 

O

b

O .

d

v' >

cM0

Q.... 

N

O

C70

U

4. O • 

9

0

N • ^' 

U

p

t. 

N

u•. 

t•. 

U .. 

A



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 30

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

WILLIAM COBB AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 33 YEARS

WHEREAS, William Cobb retires on May 1, 2023 as an Equipment Operator, with more than 33 years of
service with the Goldsboro Public Works Department; and

WHEREAS, William began his career on May 3, 1989, as a Temporary Laborer with the Recreation and
Parks Department; and

WHEREAS, on August 4, 1989, William was transferred to Permanent Laborer II with the Public Works

Department; and

WHEREAS, on November 21, 1990, William was promoted to Equipment Operator I with the Public Works

Department; and

WHEREAS, on July 20, 1998, William was promoted to Equipment Operator II with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on January 1, 2016, William was promoted to Motor Equipment Operator with the Public Works
Department; and

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2016, William was transferred to Equipment Operator with the Public Works

Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, William has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the

admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 
City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to William Cobb their deep appreciation
and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina that we express to William Cobb our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health
in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force
and effect from and after this

17th

day of April, 2023. 

Attested by: 

L'U JLJS-'' 
Laura Getz, City Clerk



Item C



Item D



F









U

U

U

o >, 

a) 

4. 

al

c4 -

4d
cdLp -

Cod

p

04

rn

cd

4-
4

Cd

U

to

Cd

adZ
E

00°

4.

a

z

o •

ti

M 

d

a

Q"

vi 

UN 

U •

tea

ro

0

9

y

1-

4

O

ell

Q) 

C 

n

p

Q

q

o ° ° 

c

4-

4e°
o ° 

W

U

64

O 

O

NrA

cd

cd

sem., 

a)

C3

co

a 

U

C7

x

0

U

o

o

0

A

Z

O

bq

N

N ° 

4r

O

v 

fir" 

U „" 

cC

cd 

t " +- 

r7 -i

C/) 

p
a) . 

M

U ., 

j

v) 

bA
N "' +

r + 

cd ° 

U

W

Q

O .

0  

a) 

ani +- 

0-

0

p = 

CA

W

4-
4

C7 .

o

64

o

o  

o
a)    °

O      -, 

o

z

to

50

a 

rn

o

t

a) -• 

a) 

cd

asN 

x 

N 

x

4- ;:

s

cid

C ' 

waww
vi  '

v

Uri 

N

1-

4

o

v 

v 

v 

v 

v •

rn

UAF"
x

Wdr" 
o 

o:

b

d

o

o

d

d

fd< 

o

d—

da
d•

4

1

W

w

w ° 

N

p ° 

a

ww
It

0

w 

zN

44

64

w

per, 

U) 

U)  

Cd

0x

ZaaW
o

o

c

r

b

b °

o

CdQ) 

c

dv
aa

UxbC7r 
o

Oaaa -

d

U

a 

zz

U



G













0 ' 

N

00b
A

p

tb

M

cd

b

Ncis
4

O

44

Cd

W

64

cd .

t" 

O

N° 

O ..

i

U

U

Q] 

Ln

b

bA

N

c 

cd

N -, _

O

b

rA

0b

0

4. 

o

4Ld .

Lj

cd

Oa3) 

U

N

0M1

00

U

4t

a4r
44

N' 

SUcd
cd

4-
4 ° 

cO

J, 

o

03

1OdQ
c0

0° 

U

M0
U0

U

o

0 : 

P" ' 

W. . ° 

oA°' 

Cd 

U  °  

o  

U

r

i

3  

0

o

Q,

Q `°  

w

o

en

t, '

b '- 

U

cn

00

4 , 

y

j+ 

o

Q   .. 

v 

U " 

o

r. ° 

o

o

r

O

p

N

En '

C

cSS — 

bA

N

P. 

U

000

cd

M

b

4

a 

o

0

oo  +• 

M, 

a) 

o

cd ° 

U  

v ° 

U  

a  -

fl  

4- 

U '

b

Cd

Q)° ° ° ° 

zs

a 

oQn
C40

C> 

0

o

vi
W ° 

0

0

O

M . - 

4r

p

O

W '

d + ,, 

U

cd

N +- , 

p

G 

Q) 

atr. 
U

Q

Z

N `° 

0° 

a' 

O

o

C7

0 .

0

o

v 

3 -: ``' 

a, ;

w

o ` 

i

0

oN .
0

en

64

v

Q) 

r.— ' 

0

0

Q  

o

o'

er

o , 

N

U

Z 

a) 

a) 

v, 

O

0 + 

U

W ^

C

0" 

O

Q

U

O

a) 

cd

o , 

O

M

0^ 

a) 

4r

O

h
U

i 

O

a) 

cd ) 

O

p

v, , 

U

O

7 .

fl

a3

r ' 

ct

v, 

N

v, .

d

o

o .- 

U

J

O

V  

t + 

m

P. 

cd

r '" 

G

O

a) 

i

cd

4) +- 

a) 

bA • 

d

a) 

v, 

0

4. ° 

a) 

0

DC

V

Q

a) 

s" 

cd

U

a) 

s, '

a

00

3 . 

1, 

c

1

p

b

vi

Q+ 

a) 

O, 

O " 

Q. 

a) " 

cO0

v, 

a) 

a) 

g + 

v, 

O

o

v, 

U

p

O

4r

o

M

W ^ 

N

a) 

dq

E

O

Cd

O
c ' 

y' 

O  

w

U

p

y

a) 

z

O

U 

p

O

O

o

O

W

CO

o

4 

a) 

O

k

U

v, " 

4r

y

O

b

v, 

Q

7^
i .

f- . 

O

s 

Q

V

0

i". 

a) , 

y , 

rA •.• , 

b

Gy

N

0

O

y

C.- 

0 ." 

bOA

0

0

3 •'" 

Q

o

v

ani

W 

0

0

0 ' 

a 

0

C;

3

0

0

v,

4a

0 .

b

Uo

a°

Ai ° 

o

o 

a

W

4° 

w

U

ani

a

i °

0

Cd

Q °' °

on

P1

Qymorn
d -r

a) 

4_ ..-

r

oi-
1 '?

c

b.
A

4Or

a) ., 

C/
a]) 

O + ' •`

o•" 

U) 

ii

cadi

oo" •, _
a) 

i ° 

r. 

wa. 
7:
1  

o

a

cM
en

0

h " 

P.

Z

rn

U

o

Oct

O +

O

y

a) 

O

U % 

y '

b 

Q) 

O " _"

C13

a) 

CJ

N " .

4 

R

iC

p •'"  

a) ^ 

cn

a) 

O

O

O

o

cd

U

v, 

o

M

cd

O ' 

O

C/] 

O -- .. 

o

W

cd

W

U

p

bA

cd

a) 

bA

O

s.. 

p

a) 

cd- 

wdUx
a•

U

o 

4.

Ts

b

x

o . 

0

U14

O «

3 +' 

00

W , 

O

a) 

W

Q. 

cd

O

c ¢' 

Q) 

O

3

0

4) 

bj

cd

N

0 . 

C7

v

0

0

0

w

0

o

0

U ; 

d° 

W

o

0

c4 >, 

a; 

0

p

0

F

o~ ° 

o
s 

0

on

U

0

4r

b

v ° 

10u
co

a) +-

4-
4

1 

O

0

O

v

p

0

4- 

p

O

O , 

N

a) 

b

0 , 

a) 

b ... 

N

O

O 

M

4.— 

U `'" 

b €." 

O ° 

0

a) . • 

O

O

O

a) -+ 

v, 

4a

C7

d

E-+ 

O [- 

co

xi °

U

O

H

4° 

ocd000MNNV) 00MDDN
0

t0E, M



i- 

cd

O

cd

cd

cd

cd

c 

cd

NN

O

4

4 

c (

b

d

IIp

47

N

r 

oo

1.

0

V) 

00

m

t 

U) 

rncn

V)  

U

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

O

O

M

O

M

N

O

v7

CN  

d

V  

It

M

t

t

t

t

t

t

z

z

z

z

z

z

z

z

Lr; 

r- 

oc

a; 

U

U

03 °

v 

o

o °' 

uW  

d

o  

v7

Q) 

c) 

U =

A '

0

GQ

i

W

O " 

m

a\ 

o

U .  

V1

r. 

a .  

Z

A

a ° 

o

b .— 

eq

o

O '

O

O

n  

Q, 

cl; 

O

e

U

p

P. 

bA

cd

O

vUi

p

y " 

U

cd

U

U— 

iU• 

y
U

cq3

Q) 

r+

u

s, 

U

N

t8cd
U . 

1-

4

cd

V] .  

U ., 

r0

p

N

O , 

CO 

U

U

y -

4U

Q- 

U

4:; 

by

O

O

U

W~. ° 

cd '

C

co400
v

P. 

u. 

b

o4socd
N

Cd

A

Cd

C4-
4

p

O

Q

O

O- 

p ¢, 

4--- 

c+ 

O

U

p ' 

V
i

4-

4

O

N

e, 

a

o0

o

N

bA

z

o

a

o

o, 

o

bA

O

ai

N

O

O

U

4-
4

CL4

O

N

r, 

i 

A '

C

cd

U

O

64

O

M

00

bA

3 " 

t7

W ' > 

Cd

U

N

t 

y ° +, 

U

s" 

U

x

O

U

y

p

U

W

42

U

Cd

t

Cd

P-
4

O

O

9

I



H

















2. Cl

p

N

7.

0O

OL" 

4-
4 + 

10

N  

U ° 

cd  

ai

ctCy

x

UO
o

O

O

4r ? ` 

b

0

64

b.° ° 

64

CP

U) 

o

Q. _ 

O

cdrA
w

O

64

44

d
a, ° 

a 

o

b

o » 

0

CdHb
a) 

4-
4

a , 

En

Q. 

o ,

ten
o

o

gyp''   

O  

y   

U  

O

tNOU " 
OO

Q)  

O

N -

0

rA

Cd

tr) 

c' 

o

rc

w

o > 

r ° 

o° 

0

7W

0

y •

a

C"

O 

N

U

cd

O

N +

1 ' 

O

G

tom*" •'" 

q

a3

cd

O

44

N •

t 

iG •., .

fl

a) 

N

64O

O

O

64

N

O

Q +

O

O

U

3

M

p

fy

U

t"" 

Fri ° 

Ucd
cid

NU

7a
ami ` 

o

Fj

4-
4 -

0

O

t4-
4

0

0

o

r. 

C)

64   

Cd

Q. 

c   ° 

Mrn

a

o

i°° 

cd

o

U
a°
i

o

O. 

U

cd  , 

O

O  

0

cd

O

y

W

O

Z

o  - 

a 

0 ... 

O

CA . . 

m  

cd

U

Uj
v  

v 

O ° 

W

o

oM
W

o

u), 

o

y

d •° 

4 ° 

x ' 

oI0
4. ° 

W _ >

t

Wb °  

wZ   

W  

W•°   

s

o ° 

MUEn
0

awl 

wCn

wWUdUd
U

HU

w

C7

4Z,

FWw

zwC7wtn
O

Qw

z_ 

NO

wwr-) 

xF- 

rix"' " :)

Q

U

r

wH

U"

wwH 

O

i'

o

Ux

o - 

F-

z

WOwzw
W 

f= 

WC7

Z

w

a

M

U

O

zzN¢
wx
z

Qw

x

w 

x

U

c 

aw

00° 

7, 

o

UU004UW0P4

z

AW

Con

zP4'-'
oF-+
wx

W

Oa

3

C410

UO 

0

Q

W

Wz
WC7

WQ
z

C7

w

Z

rte' 

W 

UxW
O

wZ'
7

Z- 

Z

ZZ< 

U

UU

o 

v

wowzQ
Uow¢

P4= 

Q 

MZQUOF" 
O~-

Ex- 

GQ

wO
GG

M

Mo

z

x

w

Qo

Hzen
HW000
w¢ 

x

x;

NZ0Qf]
UW
W

PD<

rWw3MoWU
w

zR" 

r/

jWUwww

za0M
w'

Z

SDC) 

P4U0Wa"
flwL7

Q

Oa

C700> 

O

a

w  

W

F

oop.,, 

HOwww 
No

W_ 

Q- - 

wF" 
W¢

F

WF

Oz

U

x

fs, 

Oo '" 

M

M

M

U

ri] 

Grp

O

O

Z

O

U

U

O (

4  

O

U 

W 

z

w4'-'

WV)
V)

V)

x"

W

n

nQQU' 
a

Q 

Z

Q

x

F- 

IY

W
D

0cn
C> 

F 

F" °, 

et 

n

E 

W 

z

1 

F"

v'"

000

cNOCD0
OC) 

Zp 

Nv" 

CUcnCAzz 
zz
z

OrT, 
C

7wU3 

ZQM00(
D

0

C7C7R
wW 

0

O

cn

a

w¢ 

Mo

zHv, 
W

P

O

acx7

M

4

O

U

0

M

M

C7

W

W

zzzW 
zz  

z3

W

W

WOWS
xWO,

000z
0-

O

OOQwOOkf) 
OW

C) 

aft

alUa
a

HwxknUUUF
W

zQuucn
ZIt

u .-+
E- 



Ua 

d

F• 

d

xW

0UW
W

x00
W, 

W

xW

3o

dWdWO
ZOW
W

o 

d

E-

HLr) 

w

w

p

z

d

x

H

Wow

00

d

H

n

U 

x

zZo
FF00

OM
w

F

F

x

z 

04

C) 

ov

OxpwF-
wQ
w 

O0o`'' "

D

ZW 
d

N

en0

u

Q

WUNUO'; 
z~

wM`-

o0
wz

dF
w

lE-
1_

Zvi

0o

wH

UZ

dWM

cwcn
v

0a

wh

W

p

Adz

O[ 

O

M

V 

w

M

z

F

N

o

x
o

a 

U

o

d  

f-- 

cn

O

w

w

00

M

M

Vl

U

O

w
C/] 

I- 

U

F

r

O - 

o

O 

t

Q

V] 

3

d

WWO

z

N 

nMxo " 
W

0

o

x

w

Z
C> 

00

w ° 

pwq < U0o
E-

O

xoZC7z
zd - 

o

H

U `

A

U

Z

w 

n

F 

x

w 

w

o 

W

xw

Qc °

UwN
0

O ° 

w

o 

40

Oa
C7

OzUF

SCID
C 

0Z

Oa
C7

O 

zwFC) 

Mwa'
wrI

C) 

C) 

zUx

zdwz 

d

O 

0

Few

Ow 

d

U

ACU

wC7C7dUWUw
O

wFxxw
U ° 

ACU

x

FQwUw
d_ 

za

FOw '

H

Uzx

OoF''
w

u  

Cd

wbi
d

d 

O

dZo

Owwwv
w

F. 

F- 

0QHQ` 

OUD

a

dz

ZzMw 
wW

ac
i

WRQ

U 

O

o 

wddryO
r

ldOwzd`;'
wzz

Oo

OWO
w0

C7

C7oMo
n

UF+
F- 

WQ.
V]

WNUE-
W

U

F. 

C7

C70Mo

C7Qo
www

ZdzOOZ
ww

w3

cnZC

FwwOUa
UwFwO[
zO

O

W 

z

o

w

HQWM
W

00
F' 

WN

WN

W

0

w

w

r

w

HM

nwo
w 

Nz

ww
oN °

M° 

r, 

0N  ,

FW-

o

N0O
E-+"

610pNU
V)

C) 

00
F- 

UQzUzz0

oP4
4

c

wdNz
z4

zdwzpw ' 

W

H

w
po

W

U

d

w

x

W

w

W

w
a

W

x

w 

W

CID

0U

W

3

z

WU

OSE- 
F- 

U `

OU 

E- 

Oz

C7xo

NW
W

Zdc°
W

o) 

WNz < 

o

ocnxW 
wc) 

kf) 

oN

O

M
o

00

0

z

Z

NF
W

F"

00`{'

a

00E-

WOC) 
en [

Wd

aU

ww
d

Owv 
v 

Z

d _ 

wZzaZ

QMv
p 

pw0
pv,
w

r -

w0

wzowao,
wa, 

UFwwia
U

oUFxzdddx

L7 <

L) 

zdwzwo,
Zd

WdMWw(
D0U

00EU

L) -

Z0

wooxrw,` 
0

x0

xW

C7HE-
F"

Q

Fjv,

dFW
ww

OZx[
w

F"

wMz
r̀'

w 

WoNW-1~

N

wO`' 

I

C77

0

F

O

oo °° `

n

o

W

No

G

W

Fd
r- 

d

M

U

O

z

d

N

0

N

z

O

W

d

W

ZApW-
0wZF.,
W

WzF
wF- 

Z0

z

xd 

n

zwoww

WW
00

jwLa

zw01E' 

Hoo '

er' 

Wo
E" 

U

W [ 

p0
W`

oxwMF „ 
44 '

T

W
iq

00z
w

Lnx

F- 

40ow0
o    "' 

F ,

oMu
061-- 

OO`° 

Udovlzzz

C) 

Z

w

w

O

w

w
d

w

w

O

w

W

4

w

w

0

w

w

0

w

0

0WwU

MUOoF
U

oU'

NHw
z

d

d 

ow

wH

Fw

zd

zOMF"
w 

w 

ooxOo 

oo[[

x,

Z

M

Ow

FF
MF"

GW 

OO

NF
F 

E"

FO

OM0z
zoW

w¢ 

wcnZov
Nv 

WZ

wv
M °

0UW0UFx-' 

w00`
i'

o 

wO

wOwW0wW0
w0W'

Wwx

U

Ln

U

p, 

U

F_ 

U
p, 

U

U

F

UU
U

Z <

Ud

zdWzHOzd`
r'

zdoozF
NUz
z 

C) 

W

W

F.., 

W

WW
W

00W 

WW
F

W

W

ff

Zw0
0

x000Zwr)
Z0

x0

xW

xpxQ

NE -
4

E- 

MHwoHHwHE- 
wHw -
iQE- 
E -

d



7:

1oo

U

F

i

W

d

W

M

0

loll

cd

W

s0. 

ZW
W

d

xW

NoO
F, 

A'-' 

C),

S, 

N

o

xzWw0'
I

1-

4A

00 -_ 

c

O

N

d

Ucnu
z

OW
W

o

ff

Oo
0

oWpdEx ° 

o

rj"

o

d

00

o

oZ

en

p

o

H

W

H

H

O

N

Z

7

o

U

Z
E

O

V

O 

o

a

v 

z

A~

zpW
W

W - 

n

Cd

o

m

o - 

O

F" 

H , 

1

U

w

w

Q% 

o  

b >

1

W

Wo
C7

p 

v ¢

C7dWoo ° 

a

64

Q  

o

ooZC7

U

pa

WH

U

WFxoo  

u  ' 

O

cq

ZF.,

zfi

o

dQ

Qp

C70

ONN

a

i7 • 

0 

S°
1D

0

cc

UO
OW

a

o

HU

UH
do
o

a

o

c . 

Q  

o

o

P,

U

WU

o

U

5n- 

C) 

ZQQM 
P

0) ' 

O

ami

N

W

U

d

O

V] 

Z

CJ

W

H

M

Q

O

O

O

O

Orci

AUzacl
w

Op

WxdH`'
v 

w _

Cd'

W

o

UU

zxA

o 0

g

A 

r

d 

W

wx

x

b

b

U' 

4. 

Z

V] 

x '

Z' 

0

V

Q

0

H

p

d

W

M

A

i/ 

Z

914

PL4

C) 

xww0

UU 
U

azv

rQzC7

F,

H

a

d

UUte, 
Wx

Wp
W

O

z

ZW "' 

W

d

Ry

W " '—' 

x

b
Q) 

p

m

V ° 

p, 

a, 

cry `+-

4

t4l

U 

o  

b

1- 

7d

OxC70
L7

W

0

dzM

OWMdZW
C7

Cd

mac, ° ¢, 

cd

O $

14U > 
O

d

E-+

F,

W

Ooh
wOpd`
n`

4

f '' 

o °  

O

W

d

M 

U

U

O

FU

Qa, 

GO

U 

C

w

F

C7

C7

oo
v 

O

F

a

U

W

d

o

c

o

a °' 

o  

c° 

w¢

zw 

z 

7Ao

wWd
U.,

w 

Z

w

u, 

U °

u 

Ln

W

W

OZ 

0

W

Wdc 
x:l

0

wwUU
a 

WZN

HwHAH
a

U - 

ci

M

0Q



I

CONTINUED TO 
5/1/23















J





4-
4

O

w

b>,
A

V

N ^

u

N° 

cd

O

O

O

O

O

o

o

O

y

N

3 . - 

U .

Op

C0

oC

C

C

O

OC

C

10

o> 

0

0  

00

0

m0
w

o

00d
cn

o

b

N

a) 

cd

O

W

cz

WT . 

ami

3 ° 

ov 

Uw
p

e» 

E» 

GOD-

bs

cis

GOD, 

03

o

co

o

Q.  . 

000
0

000
000

O 

w

3 ¢ 

3

i

3 .

d

moo

C5

CIS

co

i=

t

oSL6

o 

o

00

b ° 

N

o

c` 

o

cmc

o

v, 

o

v

C7 "

a

C6

1F

cfl

C

06

ao

cli

L

cc

ti

cd

c) '

C

4- 

d' 

cv

N

o

N

c11

Lc, 

N

N

m

t4;

4

G 

O " ' 

O

O

G) 

Lo )-

o

N

i. 

w) 

U " 

O.m. ' 

3

64

00b4
5g

i5g

EFc3
5g

wV

N

z

C - -

S

0-

4 `  

0

O0000000
O

O

00

00

Ncd
p ° 

o

m

rs

L= 

N

o5,•

4

o

o

cd

rn '

c1

o

dm
m

0

i- 

u0

C`

7

00

r'. 

0 '

ti .

yau
l

O

Cl

a

l  

cl

lc

Cl

G4

p — — 

U

L. 

4O ,

m

N

CfD

cCn  
r

iNN
W . 

0

s. 

0

Ln

C11

C9

TJ

N

Nwa) 
0

r3 '

p

U

vi

A

p "

C

N

Q. 

O

U

CV

CV

v7

a) 

coi

ani

p

pp, 

a 

00
a . - 

U4. 
b

ani

ani

o

0

0

Ge. 

E109

GG

60

q

O

O

v

b

b

e .

d

b
E

40

cz

W 

o .

o ° 

x

ani

tb

0

o

Uco

al
A -

o

A >,  

cd

0  ' 

cd

Q) ; 

w

F 

O •, 

ap

p  , 

0 „   

d

0.1 .. 

a ' 

a .. 

y

a  

o '  ° ,

b • 

W

Q

U

o '

b

r1

U

o

tn

ti

o

v

o° 

CO

r

o

Q. 

ani

eq

s0, 

N

O " 

P. 

b

t. ' 

p

O

3  

O > 

CSV

CV

C9

cV

U

W

w

cl
4. 

a . 

b

a

s0. 

w

u

hi

a, '" 

o~ 

a 

0

0

0

0

w > 

u, 

cd

o

o

O

cd

o

P. 

Q ¢' '" 

Q. 

Q7

C7 °  

o

W

o °

A `

d . 

o `

d ° `

d

c 

cd

OEi
U

d

cc

Ell

0'

d

a, 

a>

i

O ' 

Q ' 

O

V

O `

d ° ' ~ (

3) 

o

an

U

an ,-

4

o,
o

iia "

o

cd

OCA
U (

1) 

Qjj

U >,'+ 

wy

O

y

r"• 

i

v _° 

0o
om

3

o¢

N = 

U

V '

d

U +-' '

d

W'

dOc 

i

A

0 .

0

V

O

0'

u

a) '•

C 

E°; 

icd

ad)

C

CIS

Q) 

0

U

m

F. 

O

0

b

zsm
0 ^

cC

0-  

C/

V] 

U +

cC . 
df -

co - 
po

0o  
pcd

a

z

o

d

Ocd

aa)) 

E0'' 

ani

ani

N.

O ° 

a`

i ' 

3 ~ 

bA  

b

4. 

O

Z

C7

p

m °' ¢ +  

a) 

m

d

o. 

bf

m

U
a> >, 

a 

cd

Q'
i

Q

a 

x

C? 

a

x

cu

a

a

a, 

as '

fl

y

o

v

cd

Z

o

y .

c

as

ti

C7

v

Q. 

4° 

a

vM, 

o

C'

3

rn

E

q

E

a

G4

E

Pq

061r

t- 0
000C343b071a) Was

E-
4



0

00

0

c

o

0

0

0

0

0

y
C) 

O

0' 

O

O

O

O

O

0CC

o

O

N

O

m

00
t- 

0006

t

O

0

0

C

CSV

CCV

W

C9

0

o

O

A

0

0

c

o

GA, 

GOD - 

s0
00
0

0

0

0

0

o

O

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

cq

o

o

M

o

o

C

O

ifJ

o

N

b

LOON(
Mo

0

0

U( 

tcz

y

m

L

LO

dl

00

0

Z

0

m

m

CD

t

ti

L

Od

L

O

Lo

CVL

d0

C00

N

m

m

L

C

O

00

Cf5

i

Ga

GGI

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

00

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

O

o

0

Ci

o

o
C?

S

o

o

o

o

L6

ai

r

L

0

O

Ca

O

O

O

o

O

CC

i7

0

10 -

4

O

m

o

o

L

0) 

m

s 

L- 

Laco0vt- 

o' 

CV

CD

C11m 
00

Cfl

w

GG- 

Gr)
l

o

c

o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

O

o

o

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

o

O

o

0

0

o

O

O

C

o

6

0

0

O

o

o

O

C

O

L6

U

Lj

U( 

O
CO

OO

O
O

O

N

O

L

CVL

L

O

Lo

CVL

m

m

L

C

O

00

Cf5

i

CCCV

t0

ItI4

L

i

C6

cj

d

O

m

L

CV

CV

cq

CV

A

Gr 

GO" 

60-: 

0F, 

GPI

G09- 

SAI

GAI

609- 

609- 

Gs

EA3

0

00
o

cD00
cc

Lo. 

00000
00

o

O

10

400

m

cq

00000
000
cq

00
0

00

0000
0

L6

ci

t-.: 

oo

id

o

co

t- 

X

16

0

0; 

L 

1; 

o

C6

N

L6

o

r+ 

ci

C6

00

0

0

L6

m

0u

o

oo

N

00

LO

00

o

L

o

L

L

o

0

o00
C

0

00

c7

o

o

m

N

0

CD

LO

0000L
m

Ln

4Nm0eq
X0)
00

Q) 

a)

m

c] 

L

o

Lo-

4om
o

o
I -
F

C4

e

ao

06

ci

06

co

e

ci

ci

c6 ,-

i

00

m

N

cc

4

00

C

r

c1

L

4

ce

cD

o) 

v

m

cv

o

cc

o

N

0

00

o

L

cq

m

o

cq

o) 

o

cq

m

0

0

0-

4

00

0

CD

Cl

m

a) 

r

L

L

0) '" 

m -

4

o

N

m

L

y . 

d 

Lo

0

c] 

CD

m

ci

cq

r

m

M

o

m

V-  

c '" 

C -

F

ci

cq

Ef3

Ef3

Goa

6s

69

H} 

Vf
l

69

93

ff3

EA

EH

69

603

GG - 

J00
0

0

o

cDo

o

Lo
r-

4

OO000
00

o

o

Lo

o

0 

00000
00c 
N

00
0

00

0000
0

cc

kl 

ci

N

oo

u

cry

ri

N

N

g

o

O; 

N

4

6

C6

N

L6-

4

o

ci

o0

06

0

0

0

00

c 

o

oo

o

Lo

o

L

o

L

CV

0

cc

L

00

d4

N

N

o

O

o

N

m

cD

LO

oo

oo

O

LO

Lo

4

N

m

41 

00

W

00

In

m

00

L

L

ko

to

O

m

a 

o

ci

ai

o

0

06

06

ci

ci

ci

06

ai

N

00

4

C 

4

CA

00

ci

L

ci

ua

m

N

CV

O

m

CV

m

00

O

L

00

m

cq

m

m

O

CD

CV

m

C

d

m -

i

a, 

m --  

SCJ

C,

COD

6) 

C0D

m

m

m

m

o

ci

co

N

co

c9 -; 

c 

c. 

GO" 

sg

ca
Go 

G& 

GOD

Gq

E» 

ds
c» 

eq

N

C9

eq

cq

0

ooc
cq

N

c\
i

o

0

CC

m

y

o + 

y

Z

d

a 

o

m

CD

m

0.1

o

y

CQ

o

Cq

L) 

PG

a) 

Pa

m

cz

ma) 

Cd41

w

a

a " 

n

a '

a

a'

o

m

as

o

a) 

E

c 

q

ao

a

o

a 

3

v ^°

d

a -°

o

a) 

co ^ 

a) 

ai

a' 

m

Cd

s4

A -

d

P
1i ° "' 

cz

Z

M

m

q

m

U

mi

m " 

s.. 

rti "' (

1)

o

a) 

Cd

a) 

s, 

m

O

a) 

s, • '' 

a) 

C7 ""  - 

Q) aU
z

Z '

C + 

U

U

U

f=, '

CJ

C!

1

v '

C1

P- ^

b

m + 

Q

o

to

m

Q' 

m

G 

py' - .

d  

E

m

w

ani

y

ai

A

a

a 

y

m

Pa

a 

m

y

m

W

o

U

C) 

4.. 

o

a

ani

ani

a 

P~ 

A

o

o ' 

S

a 

E 

ao

o -

0i

cq

n 

o

it

y

o

a) 

m ` ° 

a) 

G

oCda
y  

CZ

ai

m

c

a 

a' 

a

an

3

cyo

a

cmi ?

a

C° 

P 

U

s°

c

K

a

a

a

ani

ani

m

a

s 

a

a 

m

cd

sa
a) 

W

W ., 

W .: 

a) 

W - 

W

m

r. 

au

a

o

w

m

m

o

0_ 

o

a 

W

ccVq

ani

N ,, 

m + + + 

Fi

P-' 

0

w

s4  

o

9

m

cq

W  

W

p

1  

a) 

Q' 

Zi

id

k

U

m

O

O " 

CV

eq N --

i --

i

U

CV — .-+ 

4) 

D

C 

G. 

m

Ri

Ri ^ 

is

yGV, "' ^" ;' ^ 

y

CS' 

W 

UEU10P 
P 

P1

O

o

o

C

P 

o

O

o

EF

4P4uu  

O

OF + 

KBE
O

o

UU
d

o

E &

0

E

Pa

E

C4

E

d

F

04

E

F

E

E

Ai

F



A

ff311

I

E13

eq

O

O

O

00

U00

O

O

U
U

o6

O

O

O

O

a

06

O

O

U

AA

16

O

0

0

O

000

O

0

71

0

w

00

r- F

U

A

z

1

609

N

w

G

o

G• 

cN

o

0

0

1" 

N

U

CU

N

bD

N ,  

A  

OD000= 

zs

N0
N

o
0

N

Cl0ci
y

LoO
Lo

4

NNON17r

ce

ci

o

ci

C

L - 

N

f•+ 

ci.

a

O

O

O

t~ 

CV

O

dam' 

C' 

m

LOct

CV

CV

CV

EA

69

609

69

Ei3

00

00

0

d

d

t -

N

OOO 
xUU

O

A

V

OOV

OO0N

00

LO

O

CD

CV

CV

O

CV

d' 

U
i

O1

O

O

COD

l

B

O

O —

1

P;

UUQ

CV

m

ulJ

00

ulJ

U

E 

Eo

F

cq

cq

c

GAI

609

A

ff311

I

E13

eq

O

O

O

00

U00

000

U

o6

O

O

a

06

O

o

c°'

c

AA

16

A

ff311

I

E13

eq

O

a 

0

00

00ci

000

C

o6

O

a

06

O

o

c°'

c

AA

16

O

0

0

O

000

O

CV

O

a 

0

00

O

000

C

U

O

00

O

o

c°'

c

AA

t3

O

0

0

O

000

O

0

71

0

y

00

r- 

F

U

r.. 

z

1

N

w

G• 

yy

U

CU

N

bD

N ,  

A  

C) 

E- 

U

C) 

N

f•+ 

ci.

a

O

O

O

t~ 

O

O

ct

w

w

M

41u xUU

Hw

A

E-

E- 

E- 

O

609O

O

Lo

OLo

Lo

m

m609

M

OO

00

00

Lo
II

Ln

60911

cf3160911

609

fhN1

6091

GOD -

11

EA

O

O

a 

0

00

CV

000

C

U

6

06

00

O

o

c°'

c

Q

O

0

0

O

000

O

0

0

CID

00
r- F

GT1

fhN1

6091

GOD -
11

EA

O

O

a 

O

O

CV

O

O

C

U

COV

L

O

O> 

CLD

Q

O

O

000

O

m

000

C 

00

x

F

GT1

60911

6091
E0,

1I1

6 , 

O
O00O0011

CV

a U

CV

C

U

COV

ami
Q

OdA

Q

x

F

GT1

G• 

yy

U

bD

N ,  

N

f•+ 

N

O

O

C)

0

x

f

W

41

P;

UUQ

F

E 

Eo

F

aa

a 

UUamiQ

Q

x



K



0

U

O

U ^

d

O

b

N

a3

nz) 

Mcd

4. 
0

on

O

0

Cd

u

s

u45
w

o

b >~ ° 

a 
4.

1

N '

C

U

G? 

v 

O

r '

C

y

ON

ti

p .

fl

4

bA

O

v3

t; 

Gq

in, 

aC.
q

Ci

Cd

3r

C~

d

a3

U

N

Ed `" 

Uw

v

cd

0

3

wU

i, 

U

X

w

N° 

N

a3rq
s: 

En

15

o

W

U

oai
o> 

V5

cn

as

3

a

w

U

cU5

z

Q '

mu ° 

U + 

a3

w

S" 

03

O

bA

a3

a3

s~ ' 

ai

to '

42

Cd

Cd

m

up

a . ° 

o > 

W

o

W

W

a3

a3S. w314Q.
8

d

811

C, 

Ig

11,

I

SII

61! 

1

g

g

0

o

g

en

1

a

ol

g

IS
M

M

OIn

M

N

gcn

S

3 .

to

QE» 

sw

ss

v3

s

g

g

S

g

g

b

o - 

a

ol

g

Y
l 

M
M

M

t
I -

I-

II

1.

9

I- 

Hwd

W

bw

o

T

Ycl

oun

gcn

S

3 .

to

sw

Hwd

W



L



MNON

p

U

p

p •
c) 

O

z

cd

bA

C . 

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

o

03

O

O

O

at (

Z! 

O

CJ

O

O

00rq
N 

O

121

U

b

U

y

U

cl

OW

Q)

N

M

s.. 

ct

U

y

O •  

cd •  

O +-'  

a  

d

a , '°" ° 

3

Q

o

X23 .• 

czcl

U  

r (

O ` 

O  

W

O

P 

N

N

a3

U

Cf

cn

CQrq
W

O `*"

O

W 

O  

W

W

bA > 

Fx- 

U

IZ

a 

a 

a 

W •

0

CIA

c5

x

N

Woo: 
WN

W^

d

W

ai

o ¢ 

r

o 

cri

z

H 

HWH

w



M



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 31
RESOLUTION AMENDING POLICY FOR NONPROFIT FUNDING ( FINPOL- N001) 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, provides for the welfare and safety of its citizens through the
execution of various programs for which it has constitutional and statutory authority; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to contract certain services to qualified nonprofits if
it is determined by the City Council to be the most efficient use of General Fund appropriations; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved the establishment of a policy of Nonprofit Funding to provide
staff the directives to execute any such contracts approved through the annual budget appropriations
process at its January 15, 2023 meeting; and

WHEREAS, the policy was established in accordance with the following: 

1) Constitutional Authority — Article V, Section 2( 7) of the North Carolina Constitution permits

local governments to " contract with and appropriate money to any person, association, or

corporation for accomplishment of public purposes only." 

2) North Carolina Constitution Article V, Section 2( 1) public purpose requirement. All public

funds, no matter the source must be expended for the benefit of the citizens of a local government, 

and not solely for the benefit of particular persons or interest. 

3) Statutory Authority - NC G.S. § 160A- 20. 1 " Authority. - A city may contract with and appropriate
money to any person, association, or corporation, in order to carry out any public purpose that
the city is authorized by law to engage in." 

4) The City is authorized under NC G. S. § 160A- 209 to contract with nonprofit organizations to

provide services that it may furnish to its citizens under its constitutional authority. The City may
provide the following: 

a) Arts Programs and Museums. — To provide for arts programs and museums as authorized in
G. S. 160A-488. 

b) Economic Development. —To provide for economic development as authorized by G. S. 158- 
7. 1. 

c) Historic Preservation. — To undertake historic preservation programs and projects. 

d) Human Relations. — To undertake human relations programs. 

e) Hospitals. — To establish, support, and maintain public hospitals and clinics, and other

related health programs and facilities, and to aid any private, nonprofit hospital, clinic, 
related facility, or other health program or facility. 

f) Housing. — To undertake housing projects as defined in G. S. 157- 3, and urban homesteading
programs under G. S. 160A- 457. 2. 

g) Joint Undertakings. — To cooperate with any other county, city, or political subdivision of
the State in providing any of the functions, services, or activities listed in this subsection. 

h) Parks and Recreation. — To establish, support, and maintain public parks and programs of

supervised recreation. 



i) Public Transportation. — To provide public transportation by rail, motor vehicle, or any other
means of conveyance other than a ferry, including any facility or equipment needed to
provide the public transportation. 

j) Senior Citizens Programs. — To undertake programs for the assistance and care of its senior

citizens. 

k) Urban Redevelopment. — To provide for urban redevelopment. 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the policy is necessary to reflect Council directive at the February
22, 2023 Council retreat making audits required of nonprofits that have more than $200,000 in revenue. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the governing board of the City of Goldsboro
hereby amends the Nonprofit Funding Policy ( FINPOL- 001). 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 17`
h

day of April, 2023. 

ATTEST: 

WAJ450- - 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk

Daiam, ayor























Item No. _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 17, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Parade – Temporary Street Closure 

BACKGROUND: The Dillard-Goldsboro Alumni & Friends, Inc. 68th Homecoming has events 
scheduled through the weekend to include the Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni & 
Friends, Inc. Annual Homecoming Parade.  

DISCUSSION: The street closing request for Saturday, May 27, 2023 is as follows: 
Parade Route: North on Center Street at Spruce Street to Mulberry Street, 
going around the traffic circle heading South on Center Street back to Spruce 
Street, ending at Spruce Street. 
Staging Areas (streets closed for staging):  Pine Street between James Street 
and John Street; Spruce Street between James Street and Center Street; Center 
Street between Elm and Center Streets.   
Additional Closures recommended by the Police Department to manage traffic 
flow will encompass:  Mulberry Street from James Street to John Street; 
Walnut Street from James Street to John Street; Chestnut Street from James 
Street to John Street; Spruce Street from James Street to John Street; Pine 
Street from James Street to John Street; and Center Street at Elm Street.   
Parking Restrictions:  No parallel parking on Center Street from Pine Street to 
Ash Street. 
The time requested for the street closing is from 8:00am to 11:30am.  Police 
have indicated that traffic will be restricted from 7:00am until 9:30am and all 
traffic stopped at 9:30am.  The actual parade will begin at 10:00am and end at 
approximately 11:30am. 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and 
the following concerns are to be addressed:  
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and

emergency vehicles.
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police

Department.
4. The Police and Fire Departments should be involved in the logistical

aspects of the Event.

N

















O



































P























Item Q















R

Removed from Agenda



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023 -   

 
A REVISION ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN CONTIGUOUS REAL 

PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 WHEREAS, after notice duly given in compliance with the pertinent provisions 
of Chapter 160A-31 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, a public hearing was held 
before the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, at a regular meeting 
held in the City Hall in Goldsboro on November 7, 2022 relative to the annexation of the 
contiguous real property hereinafter described to the City of Goldsboro, the property was 
officially annexed into the City of Goldsboro on December 30, 2022, the property 
hereinafter described was not assigned to a specific electoral district at the time of 
annexation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at said public hearing all persons owning property in the area 
proposed to be annexed who alleged error in the Petition for Annexation, as well as 
residents of the City of Goldsboro who question the necessity for annexation, were given 
an opportunity to be heard along with proponents of such annexation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after the completion of said public hearing, the City Council has 
determined that the Petition for Annexation meets the requirements of said Section 31 of 
Chapter 160A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, and has further determined, after 
due and careful deliberation, that it is for the best interest of the City of Goldsboro and its 
citizens that the contiguous real property proposed to be annexed be annexed to the City 
of Goldsboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result of said annexation, it is necessary to modify the 
boundaries of the six (6) single-member electoral districts of the City of Goldsboro as 
shown on a map entitled "Official Election District Boundaries" adopted August 1, 2022 
and to amend said map as hereinafter set forth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the City of 
Goldsboro to modify the boundaries of the electoral district in order to afford the citizens 
of the annexed area full participation in the electoral process of the City of Goldsboro and 
in order to comply with State and Federal law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the following described (metes and bounds) contiguous 
real property be and the same is hereby annexed to the City of Goldsboro: 
 
Magnolia Grove 
Beginning at a point whose Northing is 602582.167 and whose Easting is 2306808.067 ;  
thence bearing N 35-55-54.447 W a distance of 525.509 feet ;  
thence bearing N 35-56-14.294 W a distance of 495.892 feet ;  
thence bearing N 35-54-50.793 W a distance of 249.183 feet ;  
thence bearing N 35-40-31.480 W a distance of 14.362 feet ;  
thence bearing S 47-13-26.682 W a distance of 364.160 feet ;  
thence bearing S 55-33-8.033 E a distance of 281.520 feet ;  
thence bearing S 40-8-9.258 W a distance of 529.030 feet ;  
thence bearing N 58-17-20.328 W a distance of 731.550 feet ;  
thence bearing N 44-17-40.690 E a distance of 1072.870 feet ;  
thence bearing N 35-56-25.194 W a distance of 356.969 feet ;  
thence bearing N 36-57-13.816 W a distance of 46.140 feet ;  
thence bearing N 41-14-14.495 W a distance of 50.241 feet ;  
thence bearing N 49-16-28.495 W a distance of 54.274 feet ;  
thence bearing N 44-34-24.777 E a distance of 33.156 feet ;  
thence bearing N 41-24-29.360 W a distance of 212.149 feet ;  
thence bearing N 48-28-55.977 E a distance of 532.355 feet ;  
thence bearing N 41-34-41.031 W a distance of 308.604 feet ;  
thence bearing N 60-32-40.408 E a distance of 187.735 feet ;  
thence bearing N 49-32-11.134 E a distance of 38.660 feet ;  
thence bearing N 39-4-56.760 W a distance of 93.150 feet ;  
thence bearing N 55-30-16.499 E a distance of 1408.511 feet ;  
thence bearing S 13-2-31.503 E a distance of 92.753 feet ;  
thence bearing S 15-23-34.764 W a distance of 15.720 feet ;  
thence bearing S 18-37-21.236 E a distance of 174.760 feet ;  



thence bearing S 31-11-28.236 E a distance of 86.220 feet ;  
thence bearing S 1-28-31.236 E a distance of 21.230 feet ;  
thence bearing S 54-3-45.236 E a distance of 18.160 feet ;  
thence bearing S 41-43-5.236 E a distance of 22.690 feet ;  
thence bearing S 18-5-4.236 E a distance of 26.540 feet ;  
thence bearing S 29-44-43.236 E a distance of 26.760 feet ;  
thence bearing S 12-45-1.236 E a distance of 23.190 feet ;  
thence bearing S 1-8-50.764 W a distance of 28.180 feet ;  
thence bearing S 17-31-27.764 W a distance of 33.720 feet ;  
thence bearing S 20-51-7.236 E a distance of 53.510 feet ;  
thence bearing S 17-6-5.236 E a distance of 16.880 feet ;  
thence bearing S 25-23-5.236 E a distance of 40.290 feet ;  
thence bearing S 29-9-31.764 W a distance of 50.150 feet ;  
thence bearing S 5-5-18.764 W a distance of 105.634 feet ;  
thence bearing S 47-43-57.292 W a distance of 6.737 feet ;  
thence bearing S 47-43-57.292 W a distance of 888.198 feet ;  
thence bearing S 41-8-52.663 E a distance of 381.635 feet ;  
thence bearing S 48-27-18.820 W a distance of 333.570 feet ;  
thence bearing S 41-14-26.605 E a distance of 290.652 feet ;  
thence bearing N 53-2-57.585 E a distance of 107.536 feet ;  
thence bearing N 45-20-4.002 E a distance of 100.839 feet ;  
thence bearing N 26-27-26.869 E a distance of 247.255 feet ;  
thence bearing N 43-59-50.947 E a distance of 330.176 feet ;  
thence bearing N 71-41-49.111 E a distance of 65.099 feet ;  
thence bearing N 80-44-53.767 E a distance of 230.230 feet ; 
thence bearing N 80-44-53.767 E a distance of 6.456 feet ;  
thence bearing S 20-14-44.236 E a distance of 1.717 feet ;  
thence bearing S 20-14-44.236 E a distance of 219.800 feet ;  
thence bearing S 9-48-15.236 E a distance of 37.050 feet ;  
thence bearing S 64-27-22.764 W a distance of 30.840 feet ;  
thence bearing S 82-8-10.764 W a distance of 20.840 feet ;  
thence bearing S 27-41-29.764 W a distance of 12.040 feet ;  
thence bearing S 36-47-15.236 E a distance of 51.850 feet ;  
thence bearing S 18-16-12.236 E a distance of 35.760 feet ;  
thence bearing S 31-34-21.236 E a distance of 25.160 feet ;  
thence bearing S 39-32-55.236 E a distance of 58.420 feet ;  
thence bearing S 21-24-49.236 E a distance of 72.630 feet ;  
thence bearing S 53-0-45.236 E a distance of 37.520 feet ;  
thence bearing S 25-34-36.236 E a distance of 87.880 feet ;  
thence bearing S 45-16-1.236 E a distance of 107.080 feet ;  
thence bearing S 43-12-6.236 E a distance of 131.990 feet ;  
thence bearing S 37-58-58.236 E a distance of 21.400 feet ;  
thence bearing S 53-23-50.236 E a distance of 28.430 feet ;  
thence bearing S 44-56-30.236 E a distance of 2.810 feet ;  
thence bearing S 44-56-30.236 E a distance of 30.960 feet ;  
thence bearing S 36-27-20.236 E a distance of 52.640 feet ;  
thence bearing S 44-17-49.236 E a distance of 38.340 feet ; 
thence bearing S 48-43-1.236 E a distance of 21.260 feet ;  
thence bearing S 64-46-22.236 E a distance of 26.740 feet ;  
thence bearing S 41-50-50.236 E a distance of 48.650 feet ;  
thence bearing S 37-45-30.236 E a distance of 30.520 feet ;  
thence bearing S 53-43-45.236 E a distance of 23.590 feet ;  
thence bearing S 29-12-51.236 E a distance of 12.220 feet ;  
thence bearing S 44-27-4.236 E a distance of 38.220 feet ;  
thence bearing S 49-24-31.236 E a distance of 40.050 feet ;  
thence bearing S 43-52-48.236 E a distance of 40.570 feet ;  
thence bearing S 38-8-20.236 E a distance of 44.280 feet ;  
thence bearing S 52-29-30.236 E a distance of 30.950 feet ;  
thence bearing S 46-42-8.236 E a distance of 41.750 feet ;  
thence bearing S 35-2-35.236 E a distance of 34.690 feet ;  
thence bearing S 49-1-57.236 E a distance of 75.977 feet ;  
thence bearing S 54-11-13.770 W a distance of 1148.812 feet ;  
thence bearing S 87-54-2.292 W a distance of 72.221 feet ;  
thence bearing S 54-9-16.011 W a distance of 199.919 feet ;  
thence bearing N 35-46-41.604 W a distance of 100.041 feet ;  
thence bearing S 54-10-19.331 W a distance of 232.499 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
LESS AND EXCEPT:  



Beginning at a point whose Northing is 603791.601 and whose Easting is 2306768.398 ; 
thence bearing N 42-59-35.586 W a distance of 66.111 feet ;  
thence bearing N 55-50-41.513 E a distance of 609.824 feet ;  
thence bearing S 42-53-8.196 E a distance of 66.000 feet ;  
thence bearing S 31-47-35.808 E a distance of 420.000 feet ;  
thence bearing S 63-0-55.220 W a distance of 239.926 feet ;  
thence bearing N 31-51-40.141 W a distance of 390.130 feet ;  
thence bearing S 55-48-42.693 W a distance of 369.942 feet to the point of beginning. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT: 
1. The City of Goldsboro will provide refuse service, fire, and police protection to

the property; 

2. The developer of the property will agree to be responsible for all costs associated
with extending City water and sewer lines to serve the property;

3. The annexed area herein above identified be added to and become a part of
Electoral District 5;

4. The boundaries of the six single-member electoral districts shall be modified and
changed as shown on a map entitled "Official Election District Boundaries Map"
adopted August 1, 2022;

5. The Director of Planning is directed to prepare an official map showing the
district boundaries and to file a copy of the official map in the Office of the City
Clerk as required by G. S. 160A-22 and G. S. 160A-23.  Further, the City Clerk
shall forward a copy of the official map to the Wayne County Board of Elections;

6. The effective date of this revision ordinance annexation for the property under
consideration to establish the electoral district is April 17th, 2023; and

Adopted this 17th day of April, 2023. 

___________________________ 
David Ham, Mayor  

Attested by: 

______________________ 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk  



S





7.) The Superior Court of Wayne County, on March 27, 2023, reversed the decision
made by the City of Goldsboro City Council on May 2, 2022, and has ORDERED
the City of Goldsboro City Council to APPROVE SU -3- 22. 

Conclusion and Decision

Pursuant to NCGS 160D- 14020) the Court determines that: 
a) The decision of the City of Goldsboro City Council was inconsistent with applicable

procedures specified by statute or ordinance, in that Section 2.4. 10 ( C) requires that

the decision must be based only on information submitted at the public hearing, but
the City of Goldsboro City Council based its decision on information not submitted
at the public hearing; and

b) The decision to deny SU -3- 22 was unsupported by competent, material, or
substantial evidence in view of the entire record; in that ( i) the finding that the
development would not comply with the UDO, and would not be compatible with
the AICUZ, was based on evidence not in the record; and ( ii) no evidence

whatsoever was presented, either properly during the April 18, 2022, public hearing, 
or even improperly at the May 2, 2022, Council meeting, to support the findings that
the development would materially endanger the public health or welfare, or that the
development would not be in harmony with existing development and uses within
the area in which it is located. 

Decision

BASED ON THE FORGOING FINDINGS OR FACT, AND CONCLUSIONS OF

LAW, THE BOARD CONCLUDES AS A MATTER OF LAW that they have been
ORDERED by the Superior Court of Wayne County to APPROVE SU -3- 22; and
therefore, the COUNCIL HEREBY REVERSES ITS PRIOR DENIAL AND
APPROVES SU -3- 22. 

This the 171h

day of April 2023. 

David Ham, M yor

Rnal
474. 

awren, i t7orney



T



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 3

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO

PURCHASE USING PROCUREMENT EXCEPTION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns one 2003 Sterling Dump Truck at the Compost
Facility; and

WHEREAS, it is in the City' s best interest to replace the dump truck due to age, mileage and
repair costs; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is granted authority under NCGS 143- 129( e)( 3) to exempt

purchases from bidding requirements when purchases are made through a competitive bidding
group; and

WHEREAS, Public Utilities received pricing through the NC Sheriff' s Association competitive
bidding group Heavy Equipment Procurement Program Bid 22- 06- 0426R for one tandem axle
dump truck meeting the required specifications; and

WHEREAS, current vehicle delivery estimates are two years; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Piedmont
Trucking for the purchase of one tandem axle dump truck. 

Adopted this the
17th

day ofApril 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly Yond4s, Deputy City Clerk

AHA, Mayor



U



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 3-3

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FLEET AND FUEL POLICY

WHEREAS, this policy details the management, operations, and maintenance of City of
Goldsboro ( City) government owned and leased vehicles and motorized equipment ( fleet), and the

associated fuel procedures, to ensure a safe work environment for employees, a positive public image, 

and protect against liability; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager, in coordination with department heads, is responsible for the
development and implementation of this policy; department heads are responsible for tasks herein and
the development and implementation of appropriate department standard operating procedures; and

WHEREAS, Department heads will authorize and assign the use of all City -owned or leased
vehicles assigned to their department to an employee or divisional supervisor via the Fleet and Fuel

Policy Acknowledgement Statement and the Department Fleet Assignment List; take- home vehicles

for emergency on- call employees must be approved by the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, this policy covers: Take Home Vehicles, Inclement Weather, Accident/ Crash
Actions and Reporting, Drug Tests, Key ( Fob) Responsibility, Maintenance, Employee Accountability, 
Moving Violations, Equipment Citations, Insurance Reporting, Insurance on Rented Vehicles and
Motorized Equipment, Driver Training, Vehicle and Motorized Equipment Replacement, Use of City
Fuel Pumps, and Duty to Notify of Fraud, Waste or Abuse. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that the Fleet and Fuel Policy is hereby adopted, and shall be effective as of
the date of this resolution. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in
full force and effect from and after this

17th

day ofApril, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk

d



 
City of Goldsboro 

Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
 MM/DD/2023 0 - 1 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
 

Prepared by:  

Submitted by: Supersedes: Approved by: 

 
Purpose 
 
This policy details the management, operations, and maintenance of City of Goldsboro (City) 
government owned and leased vehicles and motorized equipment (fleet), and the associated fuel 
procedures, to ensure a safe work environment for employees, a positive public image, and protect 
against liability. 
 
Management 
 
The city manager, in coordination with department heads, is responsible for the development and 
implementation of this policy. Department heads are responsible for tasks herein and the 
development and implementation of appropriate department standard operating procedures. 
 
Department heads will authorize and assign the use of all City-owned or leased vehicles assigned 
to their department to an employee or divisional supervisor via the Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Acknowledgement Statement (Attachment A) and the Department Fleet Assignment List 
(Attachment B). Take-home vehicles for emergency on-call employees must be approved by the 
city manager via Attachment B. 
 
The City Public Works Fleet Maintenance (Garage) supervisor will assign a City vehicle or 
motorized equipment number and be responsible for all maintenance and repair of these assets 
unless otherwise approved by the Public Works director and department head for certified 
employees; this maintenance will be documented with the Garage supervisor or responsible 
department head shall ensure that sufficient records are maintained. The Garage supervisor may 
contract maintenance and repairs as approved by the Public Works director and city manager. The 
Garage supervisor will also assign a key and fuel fob to each City vehicle and motorized 
equipment. 
 
Operations 
 
The use of City-owned vehicles and motorized equipment is restricted to City employees who are 
at least 18 years of age, who retain a valid North Carolina (NC) driver’s license and special 
endorsements or licenses as required by the NC Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV), and are 
engaged in their official duties as an employee of the City (this includes commutes to and from 
work and normal meal periods within on-duty hours). All operators and occupants of City vehicle 
and motorized equipment shall observe the following: 
 
1. All traffic laws are to be obeyed as outlined by the DMV Administrative Code and NC General 

Statute. 
2. Seat belt usage is mandatory for all occupants (except detainees per Goldsboro Police 

Department (GPD) General Order GO7.11). 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
 MM/DD/2023 0 - 2 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
 

Approved by:  

 
3. Cellular phone use (i.e., talking, texting, emailing, or reading emails) is prohibited while 

driving a vehicle or operating motorized equipment unless hands-free devices are used. If cell 
phone use is required without hands-free devices, park the vehicle or equipment in a safe 
location until the cell phone is no longer used. 

4. Tobacco, e-cigarettes, or vaping product use is prohibited. 
5. Weapons are prohibited (except for authorized law enforcement personnel). 
6. The warranty booklet (if available), registration card, insurance card, inspection certificate, 

and owner’s manual shall be maintained in the glove box. 
7. Installed special equipment (e.g., fire extinguisher, flashlight, first aid kit) shall be properly 

accounted for, maintained, and used only for official City business.  
8. Personal items are a personal responsibility; the City will not be responsible for damage or loss 

of personal items. 
9. Alcoholic beverages and illegal drugs are prohibited (except for authorized law enforcement 

personnel, emergency medical personnel, and public safety personnel who transport alcoholic 
beverages or drugs that have been lawfully confiscated or scheduled for training and employees 
authorized to handle alcoholic beverages for resale at City facilities from the distributor to the 
facility). 

10. Passengers who are not City employees are prohibited except on official City business or as 
authorized in writing by the operator’s department head. 

11. Operators shall park vehicles or motorized equipment not being used in safe and secure 
locations. 

 
Take Home Vehicles 
 
The city manager will determine whether circumstances warrant a vehicle driven home by a City 
employee. This determination will consider such facts as the purpose for which the vehicle is being 
driven home, the hours during which the vehicle is to be used, and other pertinent information. 
Use of City vehicles for commuting to and from work usually will be limited to an employee who 
is subject to emergency call-back work. Employees who drive City-owned vehicles back and forth 
to work will be subject to all provisions of the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regarding the private 
use of City vehicles. “De Minimis” (very small or trifling matters) use of City-owned property, 
exemplified by vehicle use for stops in route from residence to workplace for personal business, 
is not prohibited by the IRS. Such stops will be kept to a minimum. 

 
The commuting costs of the use of a City vehicle may be a taxable fringe benefit to an employee 
for any vehicle not specifically designated as exempt under the IRS regulations. The Finance 
department shall compute the commuting cost of any vehicle taken home by a non-exempt 
employee and report this taxable benefit on the employee’s Form W-2 at the end of each calendar 
year. The City will only deduct FICA taxes on the cost of this benefit. No federal or state income 
taxes will be deducted by the City; the payment of these taxes will be the employee’s responsibility 
when his or her personal income tax return is filed. The gross cost of this benefit is not subject to 
local government retirement deductions. Certain exceptions for public safety exist and shall be 
determined by the finance department. 
 
Personnel not specifically authorized in writing to take home a City vehicle are prohibited from 
doing so unless advance permission is granted by the department head for a temporary cause. 

 
 

Inclement Weather 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
 MM/DD/2023 0 - 3 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
 

Approved by:  

 
 
The use of City-owned vehicles during inclement weather shall be limited to essential and 
emergency personnel. During freezing conditions, department heads shall contact the Garage 
supervisor for the installation of snow tires or chains and the use of four-wheel drive vehicles when 
possible. 
 
Accident/Crash Actions and Reporting 
 
In the event of a motor vehicle or equipment accident/crash, the following actions and reports shall 
be done as soon as possible by those involved: 
 
1. Remain calm and check on the welfare of others. 
2. Do not admit fault. 
3. Call 911. 
4. Notify the department head or supervisor. 
5. Notify the appropriate law enforcement agency. 
6. Notify the City safety coordinator as outlined in the City Safety Policy Manual. 
7. Submit a signed statement explaining the details surrounding the accident to the Finance 

department insurance claims, billing, and collections manager within 24 hours. Pictures should 
be taken if possible and submitted with the statement. 

8. The department head or supervisor will be responsible for obtaining repair estimates and 
coordinating the work with the Garage superintendent. This information shall be forwarded to 
the insurance claims, billing, and collections manager. 

9. The insurance claims, billing and collections manager shall be responsible for notifying the 
appropriate insurance carrier to report any claims activity. 

 
Drug Tests 

 
1. An employee shall submit to a post-accident drug test if he/she is involved in a traffic accident 

or a violation of any law while performing his or her duties as a City employee. 
• The department head/supervisor should take the employee to Immediate Care during 

regular business hours or to the nearest emergency room after regular business hours. 
• If out of town, an employee must be tested at the nearest emergency room. 

2. An employee shall submit to a post-accident drug test if he/she is involved in an on-the-job 
accident where: 
• Death results; 
• Any person is injured and/or transported from the accident scene for medical attention; 
• Any of the vehicles are towed from the scene; or 
• The employee is cited for a moving violation. 

3. An employee shall submit to a drug test if there is reasonable suspicion that he or she is in 
violation of this policy based upon observed actions or physical evidence while performing his 
or her duties as a City employee. 

 
Key (Fob) Responsibility 

Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the City for the cost of replacing a misplaced or 
lost key or fob. The reimbursement should be made to the City within 30 days of purchase. If 
reimbursement is not made within 30 days, the cost may be deducted from the employee's payroll 
per the Employee Responsibility Form.  



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
 MM/DD/2023 0 - 4 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
 

Approved by:  

 
 
Maintenance 
 
The employee to whom the vehicle or motorized equipment is assigned shall be responsible for 
keeping it clean and properly maintained.  
 
Interior detailing and exterior washes shall be done by the assigned employee. 
 
The assigned employee shall be responsible for scheduling maintenance with the City Garage: 
within 500 miles of the recommended mileage for said service; within the hours range of said 
service; for annual inspections; or as otherwise required. The assigned employee is responsible for 
drop off and pick up of vehicle at the City Garage or contracted vendor at the designated time.  
 
In case of an emergency breakdown, the operator shall call the City Garage for maintenance and 
tow service during work hours; after hours, contact Public Works dispatch at (919) 734-8674. 
Public safety vehicles (police and fire) will be given priority for maintenance and repairs. 
 
Unsafe or dangerous vehicles and equipment should be removed from service by the department 
head with notice in writing to the Garage supervisor. The Garage supervisor will assist in obtaining 
a spare, if possible, until the asset is made safe and serviceable or replaced.  
 
Employee Accountability 
 
All employees using City-owned vehicles or equipment shall be accountable for their actions. The 
privilege to operate any City-owned vehicle or motorized equipment may be suspended, restricted, 
or revoked with cause by the department head or management.  
 
The safety coordinator shall investigate accidents involving City-owned vehicles and motorized 
equipment. Findings will be presented to the City safety committee, which will determine fault 
based on the facts of the investigation. The safety coordinator shall report findings and fault 
determination to the city manager, department head, and employee for appropriate action. 
 
Should an employee who drives a City-owned vehicle be involved in an incident — on or off the 
job — where his/her license is suspended or revoked, the employee is obligated to inform his/her 
supervisor and department head within 24 hours of the incident; failure to do so shall result in 
disciplinary action according to the City Personnel Policy. 
 
Moving Violations 
 
Operators of City vehicles or motor equipment shall be responsible for any fines or penalties 
because of a violation of laws. Any violation for speeding 10 mph or more over the speed limit, 
reckless driving, driving while intoxicated (DWI), speeding in a school zone, or other serious 
moving violation shall be reported to the department head within 24 hours. Moving violations may 
be subject to disciplinary action. Drivers may be subject to random checks of their driving history. 
Failure to report a moving violation to your department head shall result in disciplinary action as 
outlined in the City Personnel Policy. 
 
Equipment Citations 
 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
 MM/DD/2023 0 - 5 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
 

Approved by:  

 
Employees who operate City vehicles shall ensure that their assigned vehicle is roadworthy. Any 
vehicle deemed unsafe should be reported to the department head and the Garage supervisor 
immediately. The operator should use good judgment to assure compliance with weight and 
marking regulations that apply to the vehicle he/she is operating. 
 
Insurance Reporting 
 
Employees authorized to operate a vehicle or motorized equipment shall be reported to the City’s 
insurance carrier for the purpose of insurance coverage. The employee’s name, date of birth and 
driver’s license information are generally required to add an employee to the City’s auto insurance 
policy. 
 
Insurance on Rented Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 

Vehicles (cars, SUV’s, trucks, and vans) that are rented for the purpose of travel on city business are covered 
under the City’s auto insurance. Therefore, do not opt in on the auto insurance offered by the rental car 
company. If a bus, moving van or truck is rented, contact the Finance department insurance claims, billing, 
and collection manager to provide details of rental so that a determination can be made on insurance 
coverage. 

Rented motorized equipment is covered under the City’s property insurance as “borrowed equipment” but 
coverage is limited to $250,000 in cost. The department head is responsible for contacting the insurance 
claims, billing, and collection manager to report any equipment to be rented in excess of this amount so 
that the City may secure an additional endorsement. This must be done before the equipment is rented and 
must be done in writing (email is acceptable). 
 
Driver Training 
 
Each City department responsible for regularly transporting members of the general public, such 
as emergency units and specialty vehicles (e.g., bucket trucks, eight-passenger vans), is responsible 
for meeting driver training requirements. Internal or external training programs shall comply with 
standards set by the selected training system or applicable state laws (e.g., Commercial Driver’s 
License (CDL)). This training shall include initial education for new employees and continuing 
education for qualified drivers. 
 
Vehicle and Motorized Equipment Replacement 
 
The department head shall recommend vehicle and motorized equipment replacement to the city 
manager based on mileage, age, or condition during the annual budget submission or as required 
in accordance with manufacturer or professional organization guidelines. 
 
If any City vehicle is used to travel less than 1,000 miles per year, it may be re-issued to another 
department as deemed appropriate by the city manager. 
 
 
 
Use of City Fuel Pumps 
 
Fuel fob access to the City fuel pumps is strictly for fueling City-owned vehicles and equipment. 

 



Subject: Fleet and Fuel Policy 
Policy #: Effective Date: Rev. #: Revision Date: Page: 
 MM/DD/2023 0 - 6 of 6 

Section: City Manager’s Office Resolution Number and/or Adopted Date: 
 

Approved by:  

 
Employees are expected to refuel city vehicles and equipment at the City’s fuel pumps, and not at 
retail fuel stations unless it is unavoidable or while traveling outside of Wayne County.  
 
Personal use of city fuel is prohibited. Such misuse is grounds for disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment with the City and may also include legal action. 
 
Duty to Notify of Fraud, Waste or Abuse 
 
Each employee is responsible for notifying management of instances of fraud, waste, or abuse of 
City property. Incidents may be reported to the employee’s supervisor, department head, city 
manager or finance director, and should be done as soon as possible. 
 
The City has the right to inspect City property at any given time for suspicion of illegal materials 
under reasonable circumstances, or as part of a routine inspection. 

 
Additional Reference: 

Fleet and Fuel Policy Acknowledgement Statement (Attachment A)  

Department Fleet Assignment List (Attachment B) 

City of Goldsboro Safety Policy (City Intranet) 

 

 







City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

March 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

- Report not available at time of posting - Provided on 4/13/23

- Report not available at time of posting- Provided on 4/13/23

Item V



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
March 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  April 11, 2023 
 
• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) met for a regular monthly meeting on March 1st.   
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) did not meet for a regular monthly meeting in 

March but held a special call meeting to discuss Fair Housing on March 21st.    
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on March 16th.    

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended CityWorks training on March 7th.  
2. Staff facilitated a Juneteenth planning meeting on March 9th.  
3.  Staff attended the CALM Executive Board meeting on March 21st.  
4.    Staff attended the FY23-24 department budget meeting March 21st. 
5. Department meetings & trainings were held on March 6th, 20th, 28th, and 29th. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a HUD-offered HOME-ARP one-on-one Technical Assistance session on March 7th.  
2. Staff attended Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) monthly meeting on March 8thand Region 10 Coordinated 

Entry weekly meeting on March 22nd.   
3. Staff made site assessment home visits for ESFRLP-DR properties on March 8th.  
4. Staff attended an AAQ (Ask a Question) HUD Technical Assistance (TA) session on March 9th. 
5. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood meeting with City & HUD on March 20th.    
6. Staff attended a Fair Housing webinar on March 22nd.    
7. Staff engaged in ESFRLP-DR monitoring on March 23rd.  
8. Staff attended a HUD-offered Floodplain Management training on March 28th.  
9. Staff attended a Choice Neighborhood Planning meeting with City & HACG on March 29th.  
10. Staff attended a HUD-offered Environmental Training on March 30th.  
11. Staff engaged in 3 consultations with NCHFA Case Manager for the month of March. 
12. Staff engaged in 3 virtual consultations with HUD Representative for the month of March. 

       
• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and fourteen (14) requests for assistance for the month of 

March. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1          1 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14          26 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
March 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  April 11, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Housing: No heat Refused formal 
complaint; Consulted 
with Code Enforcement 

 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 2 Application provided 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

4 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Volunteers for Kiwanis 
Run 

1 Referred to GYC 

Community Service 1 Could not reach caller when returning call 
Cameras on downtown 
street/recent car 
vandalism 

1 Consulted IT & DD – No cameras 

Rental Assistance 1 Could not reach caller when returning call 
Housing in Columbia, SC 1 Referred to local Columbia DSS 
City programs 1 Eastpointe seeking program information to update their resource 

listing/provided program details 
Tax Information 1 Referred to Wayne County 
Utility Assistance 1 Referred to Wayne County DSS 
Total Requests: 14  

 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
March 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: April 11, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 10 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 15 existing business owners.  

• Working with the ACM to facilitate updates to TIGER 16 grant agreement to update scope. 
• South Center Street Development discussions with ACM and consultant. 
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 

in March. Working with a consultant to prepare a Dept. of Commerce Transformation Grant application for 
stabilization. 

• COG budget planning.  
• Updates to HUB rental fee structure and presentation to Council. Resolution was signed on March 20th.  
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website. Finalizing testing/implementation phase. 

Working with IT Department to move over to the new site.   
• Staff working with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls.  

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           
• Actively working with Randall Gross, a consultant for downtown residential development needs, specifically in 

the 300 and 400 blocks of S. Center St. 

• Staff is finalizing plans for placement and funding of security cameras in public parking lots to improve visibility 
and address safety concerns. 

• Preparing a large wall mural to repaint once funding is identified for the final installation.  

• Staff shared recommendations for parking enforcement with a public hearing on March 20th. Currently collecting 
additional data that was requested in order to prepare a list of management options for Council’s review. 

• Staff attended the NC Main Street Conference in Statesville March 14-16. 8 DGDC volunteers accompanied staff.  

• Staff led a downtown tour for the Town of Clayton’s department heads and commission on March 30th.  

• Staff held first monthly meeting with Main Street staff re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• Staff attended the 135th US Colored Troop Plaque Dedication on March 27th  

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and 
Planning Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• DGDC Merchants, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees met on March 7th , Executive 

Committee and DGDC Board of Directors on March 8th.   
• Council Retreat presentations – February 22nd and 23rd   

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: Mental Health March – March 11th, Small Batch Craft Market – March 17th.  
• Erin is participating in Leadership Wayne, October 2022 through May 2023.  
• Grant solicitations for Duke Energy & Wells Fargo. Exploring Additional Grants.  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 
• 120 E Mulberry St coming soon 
• Spice Bouquet coming soon to 112 E Mulberry St. 
• Arts Council will relocate to 139 W Walnut St. Moving in the spring. 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 14,867; 48,750 reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
March 2023 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  04-05-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• This project is 98% complete. 
 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Little/Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 

• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering 
report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station; 

• PER/EID Report submitted  to DWI for review and approval; 
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle (MOP) Plant Expansion Project and 

staff is working with MOP, WithersRavenel, and TA Loving through the design process. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are underway for March/April 2023. 

 
Water System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work is completed. 
 
Wastewater System Asset Inventory and Assessment 

• WithersRavenel project work is completed. 
 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith has commenced preliminary work on the MRF Study.  

 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Pilot area work has begun; 
• Staff continues to work with CDM Smith on project data and details; 
• Projected completion May/June. 

 
 
 
 
 



2 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories. 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
MARCH 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: April 5, 2023 
 

 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues February-22 Adjusted Budget February-23 Collected
General Fund 33,693,994$    46,526,373$        32,073,860$    68.94%
Utility Fund 13,500,935      24,228,129          15,569,157      64.26%
Downtown District Fund 89,477             117,019               96,476             82.44%
Occupancy Tax Fund 701,011           1,191,450            764,430           64.16%
Stormwater Fund 1,353,689        1,981,528            1,436,909        72.52%
     Total 49,339,106$    74,044,499$        49,940,832$    67.45%

Expenditures
General Fund 26,825,032$    46,526,373$        29,919,697$    64.31%
Utility Fund 8,773,728        24,228,129 10,875,254 44.89%
Downtown District Fund 64,926             117,019 47,476             40.57%
Occupancy Tax Fund 702,768           1,191,450 725,678 60.91%
Stormwater Fund 1,572,837        1,981,528 1,337,459 67.50%
     Total 37,939,290$    74,044,499$        42,905,563$    57.95%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

February-22 Adjusted Budget February-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 17,570,928$    19,271,704$        17,728,697$    91.99%
Charges for Services 16,953,724      30,030,307          18,574,437      61.85%
Revenue Other Agencies 7,359,451        16,372,366          7,747,078        47.32%
Other Revenues 5,049,122        3,248,319            2,632,584        81.04%
Fund Balance -                   1,792,806            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 2,405,880        3,328,996            3,258,036        97.87%
     Total 49,339,106$    74,044,499$        49,940,832$    67.45%

Expenditures
Labor 19,473,954$    29,745,929$        21,920,544$    73.69%
Non-Labor 18,465,336      44,298,570          20,985,019      47.37%
     Total 37,939,290$    74,044,499$        42,905,563$    57.95%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual February-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           493$                     10,007$           
Surplus 154,548$         -$                      3,876$             

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 4/5/23 7:17 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 4/10/23 11:10 AM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 3/31/2023 2/28/2023 3/31/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 3,667,139.18$               2,088,147.24$               2,814,084.27$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 8,538,278.51$               8,518,208.21$               10,524,904.25$            2.81%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 622,745.38$                  622,022.22$                  15,084,187.97$            1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 256,357.34$                  255,367.57$                  249,743.78$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,032,985.34$               8,998,109.96$               4,407,321.50$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,484,333.64$               4,467,012.08$               4,368,633.89$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 -$                                 48,080.48$                    n/a
Truist MMA 24,748,938.35$            24,689,438.56$            -$                                 2.96%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock 414,276.71$                  414,273.19$                  1,650,652.30$               0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,224.76$               2,380,204.54$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 1,871,858.61$               1,871,471.84$               1,868,212.43$               0.24%
Totals 56,019,137.82$           54,305,255.41$           41,016,820.87$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
March 31, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2023 3-31-23 4/10/2023 11:10 AM



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report - February 2023
Prepared: tlw 4/5/2023 8:22 AM/cfg 4/10/2023 12:09 PM
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow Fund
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   C3101
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F -$                   43,202$             -$                   63,557$             (20,355)$           C3101
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 328,479$                   328,479$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,137$                   351,137$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 237,076$                   237,076$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                -$                   132,380$          -$                   133,699$          (1,319)$             C2102
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,122$                   354,122$                -$                   87,559$             -$                   87,987$             (428)$                 C2101
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 250,738$                   250,738$                -$                   24,002$             -$                   32,592$             (8,590)$             C3101
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   604$                  16,773$             (16,773)$           C2101
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   854$                  13,887$             (13,887)$           C3101
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                -$                   -$                   444$                  35,279$             (35,279)$           C3102

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   C2101
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   22
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          R1102
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 188,813$                   200,946$                64$                    272,946$          -$                   106,537$          166,409$          P3101
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             0$                      P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 108,628$                   108,628$                -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             (0)$                     P3106
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   P3102
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          R1103

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   R1104
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,688$          -$                   966,688$          (0)$                     R1105

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   R1106
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 94,616$                     94,616$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   R1106

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             34,875$             9,032,985$       -$                   -$                   9,032,985$       R1107
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      S1102
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   639,892$          -$                   730,989$          (91,097)$           S1103

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             990$                  485,406$          -$                   466,382$          19,024$             S1104
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RehabPrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,574$          -$                   598,574$          (0)$                     S1105
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   S1106

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               1,375$               297,800$          (293,300)$         S1107
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               4,250$               4,250$               (2,750)$             S1108

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 3,610,000$               3,717,200$             -$                   35,000$             -$                   265,513$          (230,513)$         W1111
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               W1112
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               W1113

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   -$                   -$                   376,000$          (376,000)$         G1102
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             G1103

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                -$                   547,943$          -$                   251,072$          296,871$          G1104
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             G1105
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$                   6,417,323$       10,800$             6,253,831$       163,492$          G1106

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 39,201$                     39,201$                  -$                   45,676$             -$                   35,992$             9,684$               G1107
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 15,728$                     15,728$                  -$                   15,977$             -$                   14,294$             1,683$               G1108
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 56,351$                     56,351$                  50$                    62,083$             2,646$               19,487$             42,596$             P3104

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,372,871$               1,372,871$             -$                   1,311,431$       283,930$          919,901$          391,530$          T2201
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       F3111

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 2,000$                       2,000$                     -$                   1,531$               -$                   -$                   1,531$               F3110

Total 82,804,021$             82,914,265$           35,979$             46,912,416$     304,903$          38,648,293$     8,264,123$       

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-03 Mar_1 Grants 2023-03 March 4/10/2023 12:43 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Council Timothy Salmon Operational Supplies -$                   (2,000)$                 
City Council Timothy Salmon Insurance Deductible Claims 83$                    -$                       
City Council Timothy Salmon Title Search & Legal Fees -$                   (83)$                       
City Council Timothy Salmon Luncheon/Dinner Meetings 2,000$               -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - City Council 2,083$               (2,083)$                 

Community Relations Felecia Williams Medical Exams 29$                    -$                       
Community Relations Felecia Williams Operational Supplies -$                   (300)$                    
Community Relations Felecia Williams Travel -$                   (129)$                    
Community Relations Felecia Williams Copy Machine Cost 1,900$               -$                       
Community Relations Felecia Williams Other Training -$                   (1,900)$                 
Community Relations Felecia Williams Office Supplies 400$                  -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Community Relations 2,329$               (2,329)$                 

GEC Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$                   (2,500)$                 
GEC Felicia Brown Advertising -$                   (500)$                    
GEC Felicia Brown Alcohol for Resale-GEC 3,000$               -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Community Relations 3,000$               (3,000)$                 

Inspections Allan Anderson Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   -$                       
Transfers - Mar 2023 - Inspections -$                   -$                       

Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   (1,500)$                 
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (1,612)$                 
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 250$                  -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 847$                  -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Multi-Peril Insurance 1,800$               -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Auto Liability 10$                    -$                       
Public Works Admin Rick Fletcher Telephone 205$                  -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Public Works Admin 3,112$               (3,112)$                 

PW Garage Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 50$                    -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (83)$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Education Reimbursement -$                   (400)$                    
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Clothing Allowance 250$                  -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Vacation Pay Out 10$                    -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Multi-Peril Insurance 848$                  -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Auto Liability 30$                    -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Overtime -$                   (2,000)$                 
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Batteries 1,245$               -$                       
PW Garage Rick Fletcher Welding Supplies 50$                    -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - PW Garage 2,483$               (2,483)$                 

Finance Catherine Gwynn Contract Services 13,123$            -$                       
Finance Catherine Gwynn Salaries & Wages Part-Time -$                   (13,123)$              

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Finance 13,123$            (13,123)$              

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 Transfer Summary Mar 4/10/2023 11:02 AM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Medical Exams 250$                  -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Insurance Deductible Claims 2,200$               -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Trash Container Purchases 7,600$               -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Dumpsters -$                   (7,600)$                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Multi-Peril Insurance 7,300$               -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Auto Liability 1,200$               -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Overtime 17,000$            -$                       
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Social Security -$                   (5,000)$                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher NCLGERS-Retirement -$                   (4,350)$                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher 401-K Retirement -$                   (5,000)$                 
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Hospital Insurance -$                   (13,600)$              

Transfers - Mar 2023 - PW Solid Waste 35,550$            (35,550)$              

Engineering Bobby Croom Travel 700$                  -$                       
Engineering Bobby Croom Machine/Equipment Maintenance 100$                  -$                       
Engineering Bobby Croom Fees & Dues -$                   (700)$                    
Engineering Bobby Croom Maintenance Materials -$                   (3,200)$                 
Engineering Bobby Croom Other Training 3,100$               -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Engineering 3,900$               (3,900)$                 

Fire Ron Stempien Salaries & Wages Regular -$                   -$                       
Fire Ron Stempien Contract Services 300$                  -$                       
Fire Ron Stempien Office Supplies -$                   (300)$                    
Fire Ron Stempien Facility Updates-Fire Station 5 14,700$            -$                       
Fire Ron Stempien Building Maintenance -$                   (14,700)$              

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Fire 15,000$            (15,000)$              

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 8,000$               -$                       
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time -$                   (8,000)$                 

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Parks & Recreation 8,000$               (8,000)$                 

Golf Felicia Brown Operational Supplies 8,000$               -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Tree Service -$                   (16,800)$              
Golf Felicia Brown Pro Shop Expense 6,000$               -$                       
Golf Felicia Brown Telephone 2,800$               -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Golf 16,800$            (16,800)$              

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                   (788)$                    
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Multi-Peril Insurance 333$                  -$                       
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Auto Liability 455$                  -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Distribution & Collections 788$                  (788)$                    

Water Treatment Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (5,000)$                 
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Protective Clothing 2,000$               -$                       
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Natural Gas 3,000$               -$                       

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 Transfer Summary Mar 4/10/2023 11:02 AM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2022 through June, 2023

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Water Treatment 5,000$               (5,000)$                 

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Travel -$                   (3,000)$                 
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (10,000)$              
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Other Training 3,000$               -$                       
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Wastewater Analysis 10,000$            -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Water Reclamation 13,000$            (13,000)$              

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                   (300)$                    
Compost Bert Sherman Fees & Dues 300$                  -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Compost 300$                  (300)$                    

Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Postage -$                   (200)$                    
Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice Contract Services 200$                  -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Occupancy Tax 200$                  (200)$                    

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies 15,000$            -$                       
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Sidewalk Repairs -$                   (7,500)$                 
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Tree Service -$                   (7,500)$                 

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Stormwater 15,000$            (15,000)$              
.

Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies -$                   (135)$                    
Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca Printing 135$                  -$                       

Transfers - Mar 2023 - Downtown MSD 135$                  (135)$                    
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Mar 2023 139,803$          (139,803)$            
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022-Mar 2023 489,541$          (489,541)$            

Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 Transfer Summary Mar 4/10/2023 11:02 AM



Fund Name Date From For Amount

Police-Other Restricted Funds 8/25/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,531.50$      

1,531.50$      

Police Other Restricted Funds 10/7/2022 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police Other Restricted Funds 10/28/2022 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police Other Restricted Funds 11/19/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police Other Restricted Funds 10/26/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,100.00$      
Police Other Restricted Funds 11/2/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,000.00$      
Police Other Restricted Funds 12/8/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,500.00$      

Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 12/1/2022 NCTA P & R 4,000.00$      
7,750.00$      

Donations 12/6/2022 Anne H Scott Cemetery Maintenance 900.00$          

Police Other Restricted Funds 1/4/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 120.00$          
Police Other Restricted Funds 1/11/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police Other Restricted Funds 2/9/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            
Police Other Restricted Funds 3/8/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services 50.00$            

Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 2/1/2023 Wayne Co United Soccer Club P & R 2,060.48$      

Fire Special Revenue Fund 11/21/2022 Walmart Fire Services 531.35$          
Fire Special Revenue Fund 11/21/2022 Walmart Fire Services 500.00$          
Fire Special Revenue Fund 11/21/2022 Walmart Fire Services 500.00$          
Fire Special Revenue Fund 3/20/2023 E Smith DDS Fire Services (Summer Camp) 500.00$          
Fire Special Revenue Fund 2/22/2023 Haithcock, Barfield, Hulse & King PLLC Fire Services (Summer Camp) 1,000.00$      
Fire Special Revenue Fund 3/27/2023 Bicycle World Fire Services (Summer Camp) 100.00$          

6,361.83$      
15,643.33$    

Donations Received Report

Quarter Ending 3/31/2023
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Totals

Fiscal Year to Date - Total Donations

FY22-23

Quarter 1 Ended 9/30/2022 - Total Donations

Quarter 2 Ended 12/31/2022 - Total Donations

Quarter 3 Ended 3/31/2023 - Total Donations

Noncash Donation
One February 22, 2023 the Fire department received a 65" TLC TV from Ms. Tonya Sykes and Ms. Rachel Nash valued at $650.00

Donations FY22-23 FY22-23 4/11/2023 9:25 AM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
March 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: April 6, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 70% of the time. 30% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 4:40.   
  

  The full response within 8 minutes occurred 96% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 6 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Fire Prevention Lesson at Wayne Christian School, and Truck Displays. We reached 
15 Adults and 71 Children with fire prevention materials.  

  
 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229          243 728 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7            4 12 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93          101 304 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28          28 85 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33          38 113 

Other: 85 61 68          71 214 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074          3022 9065 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0          5 11 

Inspections: 115 116 155          129 386 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
March 2023 
Date Prepared:  April 5, 2023 
 
 
Human Resources  

• Preparing to complete Salary & Compensation Survey once final vendor bid is accepted and 
approved. 

• Participating in several interviews for various departments to help fill the needs of the City of 
Goldsboro. 

• Attended the NCIPMA HR Conference – Susan & Christie 
• Coordinating with Department Heads regarding the 15th Annual Career Fair 2023 for Chamber at 

Maxwell Center to be held April 6, 2023 
• Coordinating with Public Utilities and NC Rural Water Association regarding Apprenticeship for 

Wastewater Operations. 
• Added Social Media and Technology & Communication policies and signature forms to the 

Onboarding portal to be completed now during the Onboarding process and reviewed during New 
Hire Orientation. 

• Provided Police Evaluation list to department for CALEA 
• Provided Neogov Perform guidance to Lenoir County 
• Updated several job descriptions in Neogov to prepare for upcoming advertisements. 
• Completed Public Information request. 
• Attended WCHRA Meeting 
• Attended PSHRA Training – Seven Steps to Effective Communication & Women in Leadership 
• Held a Special Events Committee meeting & preparing for Wellness Committee Meeting on 4/6/23. 
• Promoting and continuation of 2023 Biggest Winner Challenge 
• Preparing for LGFCU/Civic Summit to be held for Wayne County and surrounding municipalities. 
• Enrolled police officers in Introduction to Law class through Neogov Learn module. 
• Scanning and importing employee documentation in Laserfische files and Implementing Electronic 

Filing System 
• Working with IT To resolve Coda Issues regarding Dual Employment status on PAFs 
• Preparing to train HR staff on Laserfische to move forward with our electronic filing system project. 
• Coordinating Special Events Committee 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation 
• Preparing for Administrative Professionals Day 
• Preparing for upcoming Chamber of Commerce Career Fair 
 

Safety   
• March City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• March 13 – DGDC Meeting with NCFF Committee 
• March 15 – Meeting with Travelers field agent concerning the Solid Waste vehicle fire on Spence 

Avenue. 
• March 15 – Met with Nelson Artis concerning the Solid Waste vehicle fire on Spence Avenue. He 

was the driver of the vehicle. 
• Field safety with D&C crew on Highway 70 construction project. 
• Scheduling Forklift training for 30 Public Works employees. 



2 

• Met with Sgt. Smith concerning the safety and property at the Coley Center. 
• March 27 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Heard two cases. 
• March 27 – Meeting with Major Edwards concerning Public Law during interviews. 
• March 28 – Accident investigation involving Parks and Recreation vehicle. 
• March 29 – Met with Adam Twiss concerning the TA Loving meeting and the Paramount Theater. 
• March 31 – Made sure scaffolding was constructed around the entrance of Paramount Theater due 

to falling material. 
• All fire inspection task were completed for City Hall. 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 
• Daily office duties 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 168 clinic visits this month.  
 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• Biggest Winner Weight loss challenge continues through April 6th . 
• Colorectal Cancer Awareness email sent to all employees March 3rd 
• Hearing Screen Reviews for WRF March 10th  
• Fire Department Hearing Screens March 20th, 21st, 22nd, and 23rd  
• Police Dept Hearing Screens March 8th and 27th   
• Narcan/Sharps Container training at Police Dept March 31st  
• 80 Annual Hearing Screens completed .  
• 4 routine Blood pressure checks 
• 7 Finger Stick Blood Sugar checks 
• 12 Drug Screens completed 

 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• 3 employees Quarantined/COVID positive  
• 1 employee started FMLA  
• 3 Workplace Injuries , all 3 were OSHA recordable  
• Assisted 2 with finding Primary Care Provider 
• 1 referral to EAP 

 
 
 

DRUG SCREENS = 10 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  0 
New Hire non- CDL:  6 
Promotion CDL:  1 
Promotion non-CDL: 1 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  1  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  0 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

 
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428          429 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91          91 

Total Employees 520 519 519          519 
Male  402 402 400          401 
Female 118 117 119          118 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318          318 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172          175 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16          16 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4          4 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8          7 
Vacancies  39 45 41          42 
Applications 137 389 354          293 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218          117 
New Hires  10 4 8          7 
Promotions 0 0 0          0 
Resignations 3 8 4          5 
Retirements  1 1 1          1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0          0 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2%          1.5% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2          3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3          2 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

13 3 3          6 

Telework 13 14 14          13 
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 



4 

Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 
 

2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total 
Employment 

569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 
 

537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88% .89% .53% 1.44% 1.08% 1.09% 1.45% 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
March 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: April 6, 2023 
 

• Cityworks rolled out for Building & Grounds Division. 
• Completed primary computer replacement plan. 
• Installed outdoor Access Points at WA Foster. 
• Installed security cameras and TVs at TC Coley. 
• Setup DGDC point-to-point wireless upgrade. 
• Setup network for Balance Vending at GMGC. 
• Completed SCADA switch installations for Public Utilities. 
• Installed cameras & Access Points at Peacock Park Maintenance Complex. 
• Setup Cityworks for Goldsboro Fire Department. 
• Completed Drone Survey Flights. 
• Destroyed Hard Drives that were no longer needed. 
• Resolved Voice Mail Server Issues. 
• Prepped Golf Cart Shelter for wireless and cameras. 

 
 

 
2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842          795 2386 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805          808 2423 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349          365  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Mar 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 04/04/23 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for March totaled $23,768,147.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $65,045.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $5,100 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $2,060. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,160. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 626 inspections for the month.  During the month of March, twelve (12) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 347 permits were issued for the month.    Forty-nine (49) plan reviews 
were completed for March. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $25.1
All Bldgs $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $17.3
Residential $ (K) $1.5M $652 $2.8M $1.7M
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $7.8
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $45
Inspections 511 517 626 551
Permits Issued 287 413 347 349
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 44

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
March 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 4/10/2023 

 
--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• March capacity unrestricted; masks and distancing recommended, not required. 
• March activity included 30 rental/use days, including 21 public performances. 

o Notable Activity: 
 StageStruck: Into The Woods; 2-week residency, 4 performances 
 Dusty’s Circus: 6 performances in 3 days 
 Goldsboro Ballet: Little Mermaind; 1-week, 4 performances 
 Dance For Christ: 2-week residency, 6 performances 
 United Way: Fill the seats food drive 

• March cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 1 days, 1 public performance 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o In Progress: 
 Façade requires immediate attention for safety; TA Loving investigating 
 HVAC Essential Controls upgrade  
 Wheelchair lift – Receiving quotes, intend to replace in this fiscal year if possible. 
 Sound repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund, quote expected in the next week 
 Roof leaks identified, patched, and repaired by Wayne Roofing 

 
 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $66,591:   Labor: $31,263 / Operations: $6468 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $28,860 
Revenues: $67,200:   Tickets: -$62,577 / Rentals: -$1,452 / Concession: $3,171   

 
 

 
 

 

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $563,052 $62,561

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $345,758 $38,418

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $65,217 $56,198 $72,730 $701,308 $58,442

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $57,493 $56,429 $55,513 $455,521 $37,960



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
March 2023 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 4/10/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) hosted an Olympic Development Program (ODP) on             

March 5th – 250 participants 
 

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 78 participants 
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted fifteen (15) events during March – 1,632 guests and four (4) City 

of Goldsboro events – 170 guests 
 

• GEC hosted a public forum regarding the City of Goldsboro’s election process in March – 40 participants 
 

• There are only four (4) Saturdays open (available) to rent at the GEC for the rest of 2023 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several high school matches – 131 players and the SJAFB Spartans 
tournament – 60 players 
 

• Balance Vending passed their initial inspection and expect to open their café at the Goldsboro Golf Course 
during the Masters Tournament Weekend   
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center for March – 148 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 455 visitors for the month of 
March 

 
• Annual Shad Tournament with EZ Bait and Tackle was held on March 25th – 70 participants   

 
• Practices for Youth Spring Sports of Soccer, T-Ball, Baseball and Softball started in the month of March 

 
• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during March – 631 participants  

 
• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms that have not been winterized and the 

restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241                    $20,294 
Facility Usage 1250 1975  1802                   1676 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122  $7,537                   $7,467 
                            
WA Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977  $2,195                   $2,677 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827  $2,918                   $1,898 
Facility Usage 2633 1632  2022                   2096 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603                   $10,556 
                            
T.C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130  $539                   $722 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720  $450                   $1,020 
Facility Usage 197 73  170                   147 
Expenditures $1,874 $1,379  $2,203                   $1,819 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0  $0                   $0 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0                   $0 
Facility Usage 190 182  98                   157 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447  $6,350                   $7,472 
                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185  $0                   $62 
Rental Revenue $0 $0  $0                   $0 
Facility Usage 166 251  295                   237 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489  $4,688                   $4,642 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120  $23,050                   $18,412 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0  $85                   $2,074 
Facility Usage 17550 19750  21900                   19733 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557  $10,461                   $8,312 
                            
Golf Course                         
Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850                   $42,163 
Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218                   $50,856 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592  2788                   1860 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854  $3,632                   -$8,423 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000  $0                   $667 
Participation 0 200  70                   90 
Expenditures $18 $911  $511                   $480 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328                   $89,988 
TOTAL EXPENSES $95,051 $80,793  $96,571                   $90,805 
TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $269,963          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $272,415           

 
 



 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 
 



General Tasks

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level

Site Plans 4 0 1

Subdivison 3 2 1

Planning/City Council

Rezonings 3 2 1

Special Use 1 3 1

Annexation 1 0 0

Home Occupation 1 0 0

Historic District Commission

Commission Review 0 3 2

Staff Review 0 0 2

Grass Cutting 

# Lots
0 0 0

Grass Cutting 

Payments
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Tagged Vehicles 0 1 0

Illegal Signs Removed
56 102 222

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 303 189

Code Enforcement 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT

MONTHLY REPORT – March 2023

Prepared by:  Rachael Smith

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and 

has overseen contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro 

signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D updates. On‐going projects include tree and stump removal, 

preparation of transportation‐related documents and preparation of case reports.

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
March 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  April 3, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for March 2023 were 170, compared to 149 for March 2022. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $313,066 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $37,720 was recovered and property damaged was $33,611. 
 
Officers arrested 107 people and issued 236 citations during the month. There were 13 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1          1  
Rape 0       2  1                       3  
Robbery 2 1     4            7  
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26          58  
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12                   50  
Larceny 112 88     110                   310  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16                  36  
Arson 0 0 0                0  
TOTALS 161 134 170                 465  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7  
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19  
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41  
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227  
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236  
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314  
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120  
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2  

TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966  

 

 
Revenue collected for March 2023 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

 206.00  
 Fingerprints   $      50.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $    125.00  
             Total     $   381.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
January 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: April 7, 2023 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o Flood Barrier footer work has continued. Currently implementing Capital Projects for the 

replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the NRPS. 
o One vacant position. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily 

flow for March is 7.81-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.33-MGD. This puts the WRF 
at 59% capacity. 

o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on implementation several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New 

Hope L/S, Generator at Westbrook L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand 
filter #2 and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry system Replace Transfer Switches at 
the Neuse Rive Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage Tank at the WRF, Construct 
Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow meters at the WTP.  

o  4 uncertified operators will be sitting for exams on June 8 for their certifications. 
o 2 vacant positions. 

Compost Facility 
• Eight hundred and thirty-five cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in March 2023. 
• One vacant position. 

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 
 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32          5.98 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81          8.33 
Compost 163 358 835          452 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 13.2

1.6 5.2 3 3.3

30 22 23 25.0

12 12 18 14.0

12 3 5 6.7

3 5 8 5.3

49 61 63 57.7

0 0 0 0.0

0 15 69 28.0

249 207 265 240.3

79$       74$       76$       76.2

1.08 0.91 1.10 1.031

0 38 0 12.6

0.9 0.8 0.6 0.742

5 4 5 4.7

9 8 23 13.3

70 65 105 80.0

49.7 102 170.8 107.5

4.05 2.07 2.16 2.8

0.00 2.85 0.00 1.0

1 3 1 1.7

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5

32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2

0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Public Works Department

March 2023
Prepared by:  Rick Fletcher

Date Prepared: 10 March 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

ROW Mowing (ac)

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)

Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical additions/repairs; Continuing IT upgrades Citywide with numerous CAT 6 pulls; assisted 
with facade incident at paramount. 

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 25 after hour calls--total of 43 hours. Completed 114 work orders.  

Streets & Stormwater: Poured 28.5 Sq. Yds. of sidewalk and 83 LF of curb and gutter; Re- graded and added 7.5 tons of crush & run 
to 0.7 Miles of dirt streets at Bain, Tarboro, Kadis, Atlantic and Dewy; Jet rodded/cleaned 2,166 Fl of storm drain pipe; Cut and 
cleared 3,610 LF of Storm Water easements along Stony Creek, Jay Ryan Rd and Samuel Rd; Laid 108' of 15" HDPE pipe and 
landscaped at 139 Woods Mill Rd. in Hunters Creek subdivision. 



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
March 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 4/06/23 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of March by the TTO—615 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in January was $1,813,947 which is up 10.8% YOY. March revenue not yet 

released. 

● February SEO report has not yet been released. 

● Amanda and Candace attended the Visit NC 365 Conference  

● Attended Wings Over Wayne Air Show meeting on base – 3/13 

● Amanda and Dustin met with Lane Tree regarding the 2024 AJGA Tournament 

● City of Goldsboro budget meeting 

● Hosted the 135th USCT Civil War Trail Marker celebration on March 27th. 

 

March Occupancy Tax Figures Have Not Been Released 

             City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615     $687,895 $85,986 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 

               

               

               
 
 


	Agenda 04-17-23
	Item A - Minutes 4-3-23
	Item B - William Cobb Retirement RES
	Item C - National Volunteer Appreciation Week  2023
	Item D - National Small Business Week Proclamation 2023
	Item F - UDO-1-23
	Item G - Annex - New Hope Place
	Item H - Annex - Highland Trails
	Item I - SU-6-23
	Item J - Agenda 2023-04-10 Operating Amend
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2023-04-17_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2023-04-17_0

	Item K - Agenda 2023-04-17 T2201 Stormwater Cap Proj Amend
	Agenda T2201 Stormwater Cap Proj Amend 2022-09-06_0
	ORDIN T2201 Stormwater CPF 2022-09-06_0

	Item L - Agenda 2023-04-10 G1109 State Grants Misc Ord
	Agenda G1109 State Approp Grant 04-17-23_0
	ORDIN G1109 State Approp Grant 04-17-23_0

	Item M - NPO Policy
	Item N - Dillard Parade
	Item O - Juneteenth Parade
	Item P - CSJ
	Item Q - Annex - Perry Real Estate
	Item R - Annex Revision
	Item S - SU-3-22
	Item T - Dump Truck
	Item U - Fleet and Fuel Policy
	Item V - Departmental Monthly Reports
	Monthly Departmental Reports - March
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - MARCH 2023
	Finance
	F1 - Cash & Investment FY2023-09-Mar
	F2 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-03 Mar_1
	F3 - Budget Transfers Summary FY23_4 2023-09 MAR
	Fire
	Inspections
	Police Monthly Report March 2023
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report
	TT March 2023 Directors Report
	F4 - Donations Quarterly Report FY2023-09-Mar.pdf
	FY22-23


	ADP7B56.tmp
	Budget Request for Urban Bus Services
	GWTA’s Board of Directors Unanimously Approved This Request
	This is the First Increase Requested By the GWTA in Several Years
	GWTA Bus Services Are Already Basic With an Extended Coverage Area
	GWTA Appreciates our Partnership with Goldsboro in Serving the Community!
	AGING FLEET:  GILLIG with over 300k Miles
	AGING FLEET:   GILLIG
	AGING FLEET:  ARBOC with 262k Miles
	GWTA Has Budgeted Recovery funds to cover Capital Replacement
	GWTA Has Budgeted Recovery funds to cover Capital Replacement
	GWTA Has Budgeted Recovery funds to cover Capital Replacement




